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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – MARCH 26, 2009

(Time Noted – 7:00 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of this Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. The Board will then consider the applications in the order heard. The Board will try to render a decision this evening; but may take up to 62 days to reach a determination. I'd like to ask anyone that has a cell phone to please turn it off so that we won't be interrupted. And also when speaking please speak into the microphone because it is being recorded. The Members of the Board also make site visits so that we are aware of what the property looks like. We will start with a roll call.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

ABSENT: JAMES MANLEY


Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Manley has stated that he will be in later. He has another meeting and will be here later.









DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

ALSO PRESENT: 
BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

GERALD CANFIELD, FIRE INSPECTOR 

    



(Time Noted – 7:02 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MARCH 26, 2009             (Time Noted – 7:02 PM) 



ENTERPRISE RENT-A-CAR

400 AUTO PARK PLACE, NBGH







(97-2-11.2) IB ZONE 

Applicant is seeking an interpretation as to whether or not the use proposed is permitted in the IB Zone. 

Chairperson Cardone: If anyone is here regarding the application from Enterprise Rent-A-Car, I have a letter from them.

We are unable to gather the requested information in time for the March 26 meeting. We shall be postponing our application process until we complete the research and gathering of the requested information. 

So we will be hearing that at next month's meeting. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

ABSENT  - JAMES MANLEY







DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 7:03 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MARCH 26, 2009             (Time Noted – 7:02 PM) 



VINCENT SATRIANO/PSCO, LLC

59 NORTH FOSTERTOWN RD, NBGH







(17-2-36) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front yard setback and side yards setbacks (one and combined) to keep prior built second floor addition to residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant this evening Vincent Satriano.               .

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, March 17th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on March February 18th. The applicant sent out fourteen registered letters, twelve were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Chairperson Cardone: Yes. Please use the microphone.

Mr. Demaris: Good evening, my name is Gary Demaris and I'm representing Mr. Satriano. This is in reference to the building that we purchased at 59 North Fostertown. When we purchased the property we were shown the property as is. We were obviously maybe not told the truth or maybe the person…the seller was less than truthful. We purchased the property. After visiting the Building Inspector we were notified that the only hurdle we had was that there was expired Building Permit issue. So we went back to Charlie Brown and we paid to have plans put in our name and we went back to apply for a Building Permit. The Building Permit came back denied. It seems that when Mr. O'Brien was in front of the Board he was approved for the back section of the roof, which from what I understand doing the actual FOIL request it was already…it was already done. He was caught doing it and then he went in front of the Board, then the Board approved him. After the approval process at some point in time he must have chose to raise the front section of the roof and he did this without ever coming in front of the ZBA and getting another Building Permit, upgrading or whatever the case is. Again, we in fact had nothing to do with this. This is all stuff we put together by multiple visits to the Building Inspector's office and FOIL requests. So we purchased the property in December, we were turned down for the Permit in January and I'm sorry, here we are. So we would like to keep the front half of the building and we'd like to continue on the process of rehabbing of the property. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Do we have any questions from the Board? 

Ms. Drake: What is it that you're looking to go through now? What was the Permit that you applied for that was denied? 

Mr. Demaris: We applied for the Permit to actually finish the inside construction which would be…he stopped off with the framing. There still needs to be a little bit of rough framing done and then electrical, plumbing, sheetrock and follow through all this inspection process to actually complete the property. No more work on the outside of the property it's actually made it…

Ms. Drake: Therefore completing the work that was originally requested with the variance plus the other work that he started without getting the variance?

Mr. Demaris: Yes maam.

Ms. Drake: No additional beyond what was…other than what he started? O.K.

Mr. Demaris: Correct.

Ms. Eaton: Are there additional bedrooms in there now?

Mr. Demaris: No maam, right now it's only a one bedroom with that upstairs area. It's going to be a loft or storage.

Chairperson Cardone: In other words you purchased the house and it did not have a C.O.?

Mr. Demaris: Correct. When we did our homework, even our title company it came back that there was a violation and it was worded kind of strange that the violation was an expired Building Permit. When we applied for a Building Permit it came back that that was not the only violation. There was a violation that it failed for some outward structure situation and when they went by there to inspect that they also noticed or looked at the plans. He wasn't there to do a framing inspection from what I understand from Tilford. He was there on another matter but he said 'hey, wait a minute you have to stop because the plans you were approved by the ZBA do not match what you're doing'. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: I have some questions if I may? Counsel? Do we have a continuance here on a prior approval?

Mr. Donovan: Do you mean is the approval lapsed?

Mr. Hughes: Right.

Mr. Donovan: Well I think…

Mr. Hughes: This was a long time ago, I remember the project and I have another question if Jerry, you could interject here? Is part of the denial because of the front porch being closer than 50 feet? 

Mr. Canfield: No.

Mr. Hughes: That was included in the original approval?

Mr. Canfield: No.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. well then there was something wacky here.

Mr. Canfield: The second story. When the original applicant, prior to this owner, came before this Board they requested a variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity. They were putting a second story on the structure only a portion of it. That's what they came to this Board for and the Board gave them…granted the variance. The existing owner at that time took out a Building Permit to do the work and did not call the Building Department for inspections. When they did finally call for a framing inspection the Building Department observed that the whole structure had a second story on it not just the portion that was before this Board. At that time, they issued a Stop Work Order. O.K.? And then that's where the property sat for a while until this applicant came along and purchased it and then through his research that's how he came back before this Board. The Building Department felt that they had to come back before this Board for again increasing the degree of non-conformity because the rest of the second story of the building footprint is there, it's in place already.

Mr. Hughes: And all of it infringes in the non-conforming zone or most of it?

Mr. Canfield: Well the house currently, the footprint of the house is existing non-conforming because it's proximity to the road.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Canfield: Inclusive of the porch.

Mr. Hughes: And the foundation and the bottom floor was ancient. 

Mr. Canfield: That's correct.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. 

Mr. Canfield: All existing.

Mr. Hughes: What about the rest behind the part that was approved originally is that all…?

Mr. Canfield: That's all part of increasing the degree of non-conformity.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. And it's the entire structure, up?

Mr. Canfield: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Now it's more clear. I couldn't understand why it was rejected and it was different than what I remembered. I wasn't even sure if it was the same building and I know there's a few of them there that are up by the road.

Mr. Canfield: It's quite different.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, yes. We go out to the site and I didn't even know where it was. 

Mr. Donovan: If Jerry made that clear to you I'm going to have him answer all my questions because you didn't let me answer your question so…

Mr. Hughes: I try to do that as often as I can but now I want your opinion. Do we have a continuance here?

Mr. Donovan: Sure.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: We do because that's…

Mr. Hughes: And even though the Permit is old and lapsed and a new owner?

Mr. Donovan: There's an expired Building Permit and the variances because it's not closed out is also expired so…but that's what brings them back here this evening. In addition to building on the back end of the house, in fact, it expired to begin with.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Demaris: Now I have a quick question. It was my understanding that whenever something was passed by a ZBA Board that it continued on but what your saying is that it really doesn't because there never was a C.O. issued.

Mr. Donovan: Well it could but except the Local Code put a life on it and in Newburgh we put a six month life on it and it can be extended for six months. Absent a limiting provision it does continue on. In some municipalities they say a year we say six months here. 

Mr. Demaris: O.K. Now and the next point here, it was my understanding that he never added on, built on, he went up and he got approval for the back half from the ZBA prior that is actually higher than the front half. The front half that they did raise… Is this true? …is about two feet underneath what was originally approved. So he didn't bring it all the way up he brought it probably about another eight feet up approximately.

Mr. Donovan: But the theory is that you are short on your side yard setback?

Chairperson Cardone: The front yard and as soon as he added to the front he increased it.

Mr. Donovan: It increased the degree of the non-conformity…building up.

Mr. Demaris: I'm not challenging that.

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Demaris: What I am just saying it is a pre-existing non-conforming lot.

Mr. Donovan: The original footprint. Yeah.

Mr. Demaris: And it is progressing with more non-conforming…yeah, I understand that.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing?

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: I'll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

(Time Noted - 7:12 PM)

ZBA MEETING – March 26, 2009      (Resumption for decision: 9:27 PM)

VINCENT SATRIANO/PSCO, LLC

59 NORTH FOSTERTOWN RD, NBGH







(17-2-36) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front yard setback and side yards setbacks (one and combined) to keep prior built second floor addition to residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On our first application Vincent Satriano seeking area variances for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front yard setback and side yards setbacks to keep prior built second floor addition to residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Hughes: I think that one was discussed a couple of times before this Board and its just one more time with another mask over the top of it.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval? 

Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion to approve the application.

Ms. Eaton: I'll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

          Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

ABSENT:  JAMES MANLEY







DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 9:29 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MARCH 26, 2009             (Time Noted – 7:12 PM) 



LEE MILT'S PETROLEUM INC./


91 ROUTE 17K, NBGH

    PEKE PETROLEUM INC.



(95-1-34) IB ZONE

Applicant is seeking an interpretation of the front yard setback and/or an area variance for the front yard setback; an area variance for the landscape buffer requirement; and an interpretation of the check cashing facility as a permitted accessory use to renovate the Getty Service Station.

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Lee Milt's Petroleum Inc./Peke Petroleum Inc.               

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, March 17th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on March February 18th. The applicant sent out six registered letters, five were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Mr. Coppola: Good evening. I'll first introduce our team, then we'll go through a short history of the project and how we're going to speak to it. My name is A.J. Coppola I'm the architect who has prepared the plans. This is Jim Horan, the attorney and the two gentlemen from Regina Checking Ed Rosario and Ken Handy.  So I will start off. I will speak about the nuts and bolts of this application and give a brief history. Ken and Ed will speak and discuss about the operation of their business and this specific location at 91 Route 17K and will also speak to the issues in front of the Board as far as the variance that we are asking for. I first became involved in this project in the summer of 2007 and my office was retained to develop construction drawings for the interior of this retail store. This is a pre-existing retail location, Getty with gas out front. So we were basically retained to do an interior renovation of the inside of the store. We were involved there and you go there now and its kind of partially finished on the inside, there may be the old garage bay when it was originally a service station that area still needs to be finished off but there is small convenience store that's kind of half of it, a bathroom and an office. So we first contacted the Building Department about a brief history of this. The end of 2007 we finished our construction drawings. In May of 2008 Regina Checking applied for a Building Permit and was denied. We were at that time referred to the Planning Board. I think physically because the Planning Board looked at what we were doing here and determined that we may have a change of use. Now what specifically we are doing inside here, it's a retail store but there's basically a financial services component here. It's 189 sq. ft. and I think that's the portion of the interior use that the Building Department originally questioned that's why we were referred to the Planning Board and then consequently now we've been referred to the Zoning Board. So I'm going to let Ed and Ken speak about the specific operation of that financial services business, go through the history first. So we, after being denied the Building Permit, we made the application to the Planning Board, went to the Planning Board I believe in September 2008 and basically we went to the Planning Board with the site plan that was approved by the Planning Board in 1999. We are not proposing any exterior changes, any changes to the footprint. We're not proposing any changes to the site so we basically we went with the existing site plan that was approved in 1999. Now I think the reason that we're here tonight as part of that approval a variance was granted, this Board granted a variance in 1999 to convert this to a retail location. So there was area variances granted at that time. If you look through the Bulk Table here you'll see that the front yard was part of the variance request. What's required is 50 feet, what was proposed at the time is 36 feet it’s a pre-existing distance to the corner where they received a variance on that item and as well as other area items. Now I believe you look in the Zoning Ordinance the office use is a 60 foot front yard required so there's that variable between the retail use which was previously approved at 186 sq. ft. which is the financial services component which is part of our application now which under the Building Code technically is an office function even though it may be considered to be an accessory use. So, so that's kind of the nuts and bolts of what we're doing. There are, the site is basically what it is right now, there are 11 parking spaces there. Again we're not doing any increase in terms of the footprint here. All of the work that's done is basically on the inside; it's basically interior alterations. I think in the early…after the site plan was approved it was part of converting this store into a building that's now sprinklered. That was brought in in some point of time I think before my clients became involved so that there was work that was started but now basically we're coming back because there's a change on this interior use of 189 sq. ft. and that's kind of triggered all of these things. So I'll let Ed or Jim speak first?

Mr. Hughes: I have some questions if I may at this point.

Mr. Coppola: We can, Ron, just finish our presentation.

Mr. Hughes: We'll let you know what we're going to do next.

Mr. Coppola: O.K. that's fine. 

Mr. Hughes: Is there someone here from Peke Petroleum Company?

Mr. Handy: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Is that you? 

Mr. Handy: Ed and myself.

Mr. Hughes: And are you also Regina Check Cashing?

Mr. Handy: Yes.

Mr. Rosario: Yes. We are.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I didn't see an authorization for any representation and that's why I stopped it here now to see if we had the people here that are in authority to speak for this. Go ahead.

Mr. Coppola: O.K.

Mr. Horan: Good evening. I'm Jim Horan. I'm from law firm of Vergilis, Stenger, Roberts and Davis and this is here primarily on a referral from the Planning Board by a letter dated October 3, 2008 and according to the letter there was a determination that the addition of this financial services area would change the use of the property from a convenience store to an office use. It's our position that this is really an accessory use when you look at the total scope of the site. If you're going to look at the floor…the floor space of this particular use it amounts to approximately 17% of the building and an even smaller percentage if you're going to include the gas station pumps in the site as a whole. So if you look at the use we would say that this is an accessory use. Under your Code there are no setbacks associated with accessory uses. The setbacks would be based on the original use, the principal use of the property. So with respect to the principal use of the property it's our position that principal use has not changed and therefore there is no need for a new variance. Having said that if a variance is required for this site if you look at the standards for (inaudible) for an area variance and it is an area variance in this not a use variance there's no change in the character of the neighborhood in fact there would be really no outside change to the structure at all. It's consistent with the nature of the community. It's our position that the variance request is not substantial and I'll get that a little bit more and there really is no other way for the applicant here to accomplish this goal without getting the area variance if you deem that it was required. The Planning Board has also requested from you an interpretation. Unfortunately the letter from the Planning Board doesn't state which section of the Code the interpretation sought. It would be our position if you would look at Section 185-18-C-4-b, which deals with bulk regulations along County and State highways. And under that section front yards abutting all County and State highways shall be at least 60 foot in depth except where the majority of existing buildings on either side of the road within 300 feet of the intersection from the nearest property line and the street line or of an average lesser depth in such case the front yard setback shall be 50 feet or the average of all lot depths within 300 feet which ever is greater. In that case, it's our position that it should be 50 feet which was the measurement that the original variance was granted from. And, the Planning Board had also requested an interpretation as to whether or not a 35-foot landscape buffer is required. And again it's our interpretation of the Code that that refers to new uses and new developments rather than existing structures. So basically our position at least from a Code point of view is that this is an accessory use rather than a principal use and ultimately the variance that was granted previously for the site in 1998 should continue and is not required to change. One issue with respect to parking, I understand that there might be some concern with respect to parking. However if this viewed as a change from a retail use to an office use the parking requirement actually goes down. Under a retail use the parking requirement would be eleven spots under the Code. If you change to a office use it would be ten spots under the Code so if there was an attempt to get more parking out of the change from retail to office you actually get less. So having said that…a…do you want to speak first? 

Mr. Horan: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: May I interrupt just for one second?

Mr. Horan: Oh sure. 

Mr. Donovan: If the office use is an accessory use…that's your position?

Mr. Horan: Yes. Well a…

Mr. Donovan: Because we list specific accessory uses allowed in the IB zone and an office use isn't one of them.

Mr. Horan: Well actually what we would say is that its more…there's an ATM…there's an ATM presently located in the building. ATMs are commonly associated with convenience stores. With respect to issuing money orders, convenience stores routinely issue…undertake certain financial transactions and it's our position that those transactions don't necessarily change the principal use. For example: in Wal-Mart, Stop and Shop there's Citizen's branch located, Citizen's Bank branch located in…in the store so…

Mr. Donovan: So then it's not an accessory use its part and parcel of the main use?

Mr. Horan: It's really part and parcel of the main use.

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Horan: Which again doesn't change the setbacks. O.K.? So basically what we're saying here is is that it would be part and parcel of the main use, yes. I know the Board may have some concerns with respect to the operation of the facility because it is a check cashing facility and if you don't have experience with those there are basically some concerns so Regina Check Cashing is licensed by the New York State Banking Department. They've gone through a very detailed approval procedure from the State Banking Department. They're bonded and they have to meet certain requirements. The State Banking Department has reviewed this location and they have granted a site-specific approval for this location. They operate nearby locations in New Windsor and in the City of Newburgh and I will let you…I will let Mr. Handy speak to some of the issues that are basically how a regular transaction would take place. If the Board has any questions, please feel free to ask him to put your mind at ease in that how the transactions would take place. Thank you.

Mr. Handy: Good evening. I just wanted to give a little background about Regina Check Cashing. Again, Jim did mention that we are licensed and regulated by the New York State Banking Department. We have been in business for thirty-five years and we do run twenty check cashing locations in two States.

Mr. McKelvey: Excuse me a minute. Could you give your name for the record? 

Mr. Handy: Sure. Kenneth Handy. And we have a lot of experience really about a hundred years between our upper management in this business and we did a lot of research in the area and did decide that this particular location would be a good venue for us to…to put our financial services in. And we actually purchased the property and got our approvals by the State Banking Department with the thought that this would be a successful facility. We service all sectors of the community. Most of our business is check cashing that's what generates most of our revenue but we also offer other services such as selling money orders and providing money transfer services such as Western Union which also most gas stations and convenience now already offer those services. We're really not offering much more other than the licensed check cashing part of the business than…than most gas station convenience stores already offer. And as far as a normal transaction is concerned a customer would come in, they present positive identification and they present their particular check that want to negotiate and we do a quick check to make sure that person is the person indeed in front of us and we register that, as per the Banking Department, we do register that as a person as a customer and we go ahead and negotiate their check and give them their money. And it's, really the transaction takes between one and two minutes tops, very quick so there's not really a lot of queuing of lines or anything like that. It's more of a constant circulation of people.

Ms. Eaton: What made this site desirable to you?

Mr. Handy: The traffic flow, the traffic flow on this street and the fact that we did extensive demographics for the area and between businesses and residents it was a good location and a good fit for our company.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have any idea how many customers you serve in an hour's time?

Mr. Handy: Yeah, well that would depend it varies from, you know, time of the week, time of the day. Thursdays and Friday afternoons would be probably our busiest time, people get off work. The vast majority of the checks we cash are payroll checks and so Thursday, Friday afternoons we may have as many as, you know, twenty, thirty people in an hour possibly. But again they come in and out really quickly.

Mr. Hughes: How are you going to park them?

Mr. Handy: Well that's the whole thing, they're not there very long so they don't really…it doesn't really congregate it's more of a flow. 

Mr. McKelvey: The parking spaces are not marked.

Mr. Handy: On the…?

Mr. McKelvey: Now they are.

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, Anthony, could you take microphone? Thank you.

Mr. Coppola: We don't think that these site improvements were ever carried out. I mean if you look at the site plan now I think there's landscaping that's shown that may not be there. And like you said the parking spaces are not, are not marked out so that would be part of the renovation interior building and finishing items that are site plan that were not completed. So…

Mr. Hughes: Are you including the 35-foot buffer zone for the shrubbery and stuff or are you going to do away with that?

Mr. Coppola: Well I'm not sure how we could do a landscaping buffer there now.

Mr. Hughes: It seems like there's a lot going on on a very substandard site already and you're asking for twenty or thirty an hour coming in and out of this place already when you can hardly get in and out of there now?

Mr. Coppola: Well I'll let Ken speak about their locations in terms of the parking because they are experts in this, they know the quantity of people that are coming in and out and require parking.

Mr. Hughes: Where is your location in New Windsor?

Mr. Handy: In New Windsor it's across from K Marts (inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: And how many parking spaces do you have in that facility?

Mr. Handy: Well that one is actually in a small strip center and we share…across the front of the building is what about ten or eleven spots?  Because there are four or five business and there's more parking around the rear of that building as well.

Mr. Hughes: And in the City of Newburgh you're right on Broadway so its hard to tell what's going on there with parking.

Mr. Handy: Right on Broadway.

Mr. Hughes: Most of your people in the City walk in or are they driving?

Mr. Handy: Well most of them would drive I would think. 

Mr. Hughes: In a taxi or their own vehicle?

Mr. Handy: A combination of every thing. 

Mr. McKelvey: What about signage?

Mr. Hughes: It seems busy.

Mr. McKelvey: How about signage? 

Mr. Handy: Again the twenty to thirty customers would be a maximum really most of them…

Mr. Hughes: That's one every three minutes in a hour.

Mr. Handy: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: That's what I you told me.

Ms. Gennarelli: If you want you can grab the other microphone that might make it easier.

Mr. Coppola: The Planning Board had a question about signage. We are not changing the signage. We will have to go back to the Planning Board to address that question but our plans are not to change it.

Mr. Hughes: And what about the 35-foot buffer zone from the State Highway?

Mr. Coppola: Well from the property line? That's not being changed. It's 36-feet.

Mr. Hughes: And you're going to adhere to what recommendations…

Chairperson Cardone: (To audience members) Would you please take your conversation out into the hallway because it's interrupting what's happening here? Thank you.

Mr. Coppola: We're not making any changes to the footprint here so there's no, there's no…

Mr. Hughes: So you're just adding this 189 sq. ft. on the interior of the building? 

Mr. Coppola: If you were to walk in there now…

Mr. Hughes: Yes or no? 

Mr. Coppola: Well its part of that there's more work inside than the 189 square footage. This whole area is part of the old garage bay so this whole area is very rough. We're changing the front entrance, we're introducing a handicap bathroom and in the whole, the entire 1500 sq. ft. of the interior basically involved with the alteration.

Mr. McKelvey: You're talking about the office space you got is in that back area?

Mr. Coppola: That's where it is right now, I believe.

Mr. Hughes: And is this the up-to-the-minute plan for what its going to be completed as?

Mr. Coppola: Yes. That's correct.

Ms. Eaton: What are the hours of operation?

Mr. Rosario: The gas station…I'm Ed Rosario by the way, one of the officers of the company…I just want to make one correction first. Ken Handy said that we purchased the property. We didn't purchase the property. We purchased the business. Second, the hours of operation currently with the gas station we're 6 in the morning to 8 in the evening. Now the financial services area we generally run an 8:30 to 6 operation so it obviously would close earlier. That's our hours.

Mr. Donovan: If I can, let's do this for a second. Let's just focus on what the Planning Board has referred this to us to review, its two items. The first item is the front yard setback, they got a variance for 50 ft. and the Planning Board wants us to determine whether they need an additional variance for the 60 ft. frontage or whether whatever use has gone…was going on there is allowed at 50 ft. That's the first issue. So, do they need an additional variance or does the 50-foot variance cover what's going on there?

Mr. Hughes: I have a question.

Mr. Donovan: The second, I'll lose my train of thought sorry; the second variance is the landscape. If I read through the papers correctly the applicant's point of view is this is not a new proposal and their position is the Code says any new development requires the landscape buffer. I haven't heard…I'm summarizing that…I haven't…we're talking about other issues that are important but their not part and parcel of the two issues that are before the Board. So I may want to hear some more from the applicant after Ron asks me his question about the landscape buffer issue.

Mr. Hughes: My question is is do we have a use variance here that we're supposed to be seeking and not what we're talking about here?

Mr. Donovan: No.

Mr. Hughes: You're convinced?

Mr. Donovan: Should I…do you want to convince me differently?

Mr. Hughes: No, I want you to convince me.  

Mr. Donovan: Unless you're getting…

Mr. Hughes: Will it change the neighborhood? And is one of the points that has to be proven that it won't? Because if you're bringing twenty to thirty people in and out of that neighborhood in cars you're changing the character of the neighborhood. And granted a lot of it along there is commercial and industrial and school buses and such but it does change the character.

Mr. Donovan: What I'm looking at is uses subject to site plan review by the Planning Board: individual retail stores, convenience stores with or without gasoline filling stations. And is that the use? Do I understand? That's what I understand the use to be. Is that accurate? 

Mr. Horan: Yes, I believe that what it was approved as.

Mr. Donovan: So under those circumstances that the use is permitted.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I'm convinced now. Thank you for clarifying that.

Mr. Horan: One issue with respect to the landscape buffer. The applicant would, you know, be willing to re-landscape the buffer that presently exists there as part of the site plan approval. While they're upgrading this site and doing the renovations to the building they fully intend to landscape the property and consistent with the renovations that are being made. Renovate, if you will, the landscaping that is presently on the property. 

Mr. Coppola: Let me speak about the landscaping buffer because…

Mr. Donovan: Before you do, can you tell me the distance from your property line to the front of the building? How much room do you have there and what's there? 

Mr. Coppola: Well from this corner it's 36-feet. This building is kind of on an angle.

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Coppola: So that's the 36-feet to the property line.

Mr. Donovan: So you could landscape right up to a foot? 

Mr. Coppola: Well, it's not our intention to change any of the pavement. And I believe the landscaping buffer if we were doing a new site would require us to keep that distance all green and not put any parking there.

Mr. Donovan: How long has this use or its predecessor been there?

Mr. Coppola: Well you've been there…

Mr. Handy: Two years, not even two years, a year and a half.

Mr. Coppola: The site plan dates back to 1999, how long has the gas station been there?

Mr. Donovan: There was a gas station there before 1999, correct? 

Mr. Coppola: Yeah.

Mr. Hughes: About forty years before.  

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Coppola: I don't think any of this right of way in terms of the two entrances and the island and I think all of that dates back to the original construction.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. 

Mr. Hughes: And so from the adjusted approval in '99 forward…

Mr. Coppola: Wait, I'm not…

Mr. Hughes: The buffers have been increased to 35 feet. 

Mr. Coppola: Yeah it's our understanding…

Mr. Hughes: On that highway. 

Mr. Coppola: The buffer came; the buffer requirement came after this was approved.

Mr. Hughes: You're right.  

Mr. Coppola: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: Or, I believe you're right. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we any other question? 

Mr. Hughes: I have no other questions. Thank you for answering those questions. 

Chairperson Cardone: Anything else? Do we have any questions or comments from the public?

Ms. Drake: I just want to know if they answered David's question on the variance. Did they answer your question for the variance? You had two questions.

Mr. Donovan: Well, they did answer that before. Their position is…Brenda is asking a question about the front yard setback…their position is…

Ms. Drake: No, actually what was your other question before the front yard?

Mr. Donovan: The landscape buffer. The landscape buffer issue and then the front yard setback which they are saying that their use is part and parcel…the new check cashing is part and parcel of the regular use so it’s a 50-foot not a 60-foot.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: Well that's their position. I'm not saying that the Board has to agree with that but that's your argument. 

Mr. Horan: And in some respects they are interrelated since the landscaping is intended to be in the 50-foot buffer so realistically those issues are interrelated.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. Rosario: One thing I wanted to mention was when I presume all of you drive when you visit your local gas station, they all have some form of extra business besides gas. Gas stations today can't survive on just gas alone. That's why they, you know, they come up with convenience stores, they'll add some kind of food element like a Subway or a Wendy's or some small operating food venue there. The station won't survive without another entity in there and that's why elected to put financial services in there. We feel that it’s a good a…it would be good for that operation and it will help us renovate the whole property. 

Chairperson Cardone: And the financial services are strictly check cashing or…?

Mr. Rosario: Check cashing, money order sales, we do wire transfer…

Chairperson Cardone: Tax preparation, anything of that type?

Mr. Rosario: I'm sorry?

Chairperson Cardone: Tax preparation or anything of that type?

Mr. Rosario: No, no none of that but a lot of stations out there today are doing these services. They are not doing them legally, you know, a lot of this is State regulated. We are State regulated, you know, we are…basically we want to do this on the up and up.  We want to do it legally. We've got a record and rapport with the New York State Banking Department, which is why we've been so successful in our business. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Horan: Just one issue with as you raised with respect to the traffic, there will be a separate window for the check cashing facility as opposed to the register for the gasoline services. So as far as turning over the transactions its going…you'll have basically two points of…

Mr. Hughes: The people don't enter the building, they go to a walk up?

Mr. Horan: No, no.

Mr. Coppola: What Jim was saying is there is a separate window inside and a separate cashier inside.

Mr. Hughes: So there's no drive in deal. 

Mr. Coppola: No.

Mr. Hughes: You've got to go in the building.

Mr. Coppola: No but you're…its two different functions inside.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Coppola: Groceries or a…the financial services.

Chairperson Cardone: Also I have the report from the County and their recommendation is Local Determination.

Mr. Maher: One question, Anthony, you say its 189 sq. ft. of area out of the building?

Mr. Coppola: The financial services room, that's correct, out of the 1500 sq. ft.

Mr. Maher: So 11 x 13 area is…

Mr. Coppola: I think we included a buffer area in the front there.

Mr. Maher: So you're saying 189 is inclusive of that?

Mr. Coppola: Correct.

Mr. Maher: Because here it says 253 so I'm a little confused as to…

Mr. Hughes: Yeah the diagram doesn't add up either.

Mr. Maher: …which numbers are you looking what area are you looking at? Because you've got three different figures there.

Mr. Coppola: Show me the 253.

Mr. Hughes: The narrative.

Mr. Maher: 253 sq. ft., 189 here and then they added the 143 so…

Mr. Coppola: I think maybe he counted the area…

Mr. Horan: The waiting area block.

Mr. Maher: So in essence its 253 complete with the waiting area?

Mr. Horan: Right, with the waiting area in front.

Mr. Coppola: No it's going to be less than that because this is basically 12 x 13 so that's closer to…

Mr. Hughes: 150 sq. ft.

Mr. Coppola: Right and then we have the area in the front there so I think 189…

Mr. Hughes: Is it combined?

Mr. Coppola: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Bulletproof glass and all the bells and whistles, alarms and such, just like you have in your other facilities. 

Mr. Rosario: Yeah, essentially we set them up just like a bank.

Mr. Hughes: A safe and all?

Mr. Rosario: Yeah, a small safe. Yeah. Every gas station has a safe. We utilize the same one. In fact, the gas station sales will probably be placed in that safe as well.

Mr. Hughes: Wired into the Police Station or is it independent?

Mr. Rosario: Yeah, Police Station. I'm sure its wired up to the Fire Department as well. It's got a fire suppression system.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for answering those questions. 

Mr. Rosario: You're welcome.

Chairperson Cardone: Anything else from the Board? Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing?

Ms. Eaton: I’ll make a motion to close.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

          Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Rosario: Thank you very much.

Mr. Handy: Thank you.

Mr. Horan: Thank you.

Mr. Coppola: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:48 PM)

ZBA MEETING – March 26, 2009      (Resumption for decision: 9:29 PM)

LEE MILT'S PETROLEUM INC./


91 ROUTE 17K, NBGH

    PEKE PETROLEUM INC.



(95-1-34) IB ZONE

Applicant is seeking an interpretation of the front yard setback and/or an area variance for the front yard setback; an area variance for the landscape buffer requirement; and an interpretation of the check cashing facility as a permitted accessory use to renovate the Getty Service Station.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Lee Milt's Petroleum Inc seeking an interpretation of the front yard setback and/or an area variance for the front yard setback; an area variance for the landscape buffer requirement; and an interpretation of the check cashing facility as a permitted accessory use to renovate the Getty Service Station. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Hughes: I think on the physical constraints that since it was varied once they changed the rulings and it knocked it from 60 down to 50 and we should nominally mention that 50-foot as the area of its control and if counsel could fabricate the appropriate statement to convey to the Planning Board we'd like to see if their consultant for the plantings has any suggestions. The applicant indicated they'd be willing to change that if its necessary and we don't want to impose something that you might not be able to live with, its not really our authority. But if their landscape person wants to do so we'll leave that up to them, if counsel says that we can do that with the 50 ft. and leave that up to them.

Mr. Donovan: Yes, if I understand correctly then what we want to do, first on front yard setback variance that the use proposed qualifies for the 50 ft. and therefore the prior issued variance remains in effect and no variance is required for the front yard setback.

Mr. Hughes: That's correct. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Donovan: Item number two is that the…just to make sure we have a housecleaning taken care of…the landscape buffer variance will be issued for the landscape buffer but subject to any requirements of the Planning Board and the Planning Board landscape consultant may impose relative to landscaping. And, I think, the only other issue on that interpretation for the use, I think that the discussion before was that the use is a not an accessory use but is part and parcel or an integral part of the primary use and is therefore permitted. 

Chairperson Cardone: That's correct.

Mr. Hughes: Do we steer away from the use accessory use?

Mr. Donovan: We steer away, I said accessory I tried to take it back.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: So an integral part of the…correct.

Mr. Hughes: So the check cashing is consistent with these types of shops.

Mr. Donovan: With the convenience store, correct.

Mr. Hughes: I'll move it 

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes



          Grace Cardone…

Mr. Donovan: Let go back…

Chairperson Cardone: I just have a question.

Mr. Donovan: In terms of SEQRA, so the Planning Board is lead agency. Do you need us to take any action? I don't think this falls under Type II. I think we can…

Mr. Horan: I think since it's an interpretation SEQRA is not required. 

Mr. Donovan: Well but we…

Chairperson Cardone: We have the area variance.

Mr. Donovan: The area variance. 

Mr. Horan: I think it's covered under…

Mr. Donovan: Let's do this, I think its an Unlisted Action because it’s a commercial structure, so if its O.K. with Board just so you're covered let's issue a Negative Declaration?

Mr. Hughes: No remediation or anything like that for new construction, same building, same footprint.

Mr. Donovan: And only for the three items that…or the two items because the interpretation is a Type II exempt action so only for the other two, the landscape buffer and variance. 

Chairperson Cardone: I need a motion for a Negative Dec.

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion a Negative Dec.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

          Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Now we can go back to the original motion.

Mr. Donovan: Betty could you just…?

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Ron was the first.

Mr. Donovan: The SEQRA needs to go first so.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Do the whole roll call over again?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: Please.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Ron is the first. Mike is the second.    

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

          Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

Mr. Horan: Thank you.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

ABSENT:  JAMES MANLEY







DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 9:33 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MARCH 26, 2009             (Time Noted – 7:48 PM) 



JEFFREY SHAPIRO



2 PARKWOOD LANE, NBGH







(87-3-12) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking a Special Use Permit to conduct a home occupation of firearms restoration and repairs and gunsmithing. 

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Jeffrey Shapiro.               .

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, March 17th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on March February 18th. The applicant sent out twenty-nine registered letters, twenty-two were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Chairperson Cardone: You may begin.

Mr. Shapiro: My intention is…

Ms. Gennarelli: Could you just introduce yourself for the record?

Mr. Shapiro: My name is Jeffrey Shapiro. I live at 2 Parkwood Lane, Newburgh, New York.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. Shapiro: The purpose of this Hearing is so I can…I applied for a Permit to work out of my house as a gunsmith. I put in all the paperwork, the necessary paperwork after the fact when I was told by the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms that they would not approve my Federal Firearms License unless I had a letter or an agreement from the Town that I could work out of my home. I'm a graduate of Arizona State University as a master gunsmith. I recently retired from the FAA on January 3rd and I'd like to pursue my hobby as friends have from out of state have requested that I restore their firearms for them. They are not State residents and most of my…most of my work will be done on weapons that are antique or newer that are from out of State, not from New York State. So most of my work will be from people that send it to me via UPS or FedEx. So there will be no walk-ins. It's not a business per se. It's more like a repairs…a repair shop for…for me. Its basically a hobby for me but the only thing is I can't work with the necessary permits to deal with out of State firearms unless I have a Federal Firearms License so applying for the Permit it authorizes me from the Town basically to…to tell the Feds that yes its O.K. to operate out of my house not as a dealer but as a gunsmith. There are two specific categories there. I am not selling firearms. I have no plans of selling firearms. I'm only going to be repairing firearms like I've been doing all along on my own stuff. My intention was to build my garage for me and I'm still going to do that but a…

Chairperson Cardone: And how would those firearms get to you to repair?

Mr. Shapiro: Like I said, UPS or FedEx. They would be dropped off by a FedEx or UPS driver and they will be signed for because they are a firearms by regulation they have to be signed for. They cannot drop them off and leave them. So that means somebody has to there and being that I live there it'll be either me or my wife Leslie that will accept in these firearms.

Chairperson Cardone: And you're saying people would not be coming there?

Mr. Shapiro: No. There's…there's no reason to have people coming there because one, it's an annoyance, two, it takes me away from my work and distracts me and I can't afford to have distractions in the kind of detail I do. My neighbor Abe, who is my only neighbor, is a New York City Police Officer and he knows my work and he can explain to you what he's seen from me before of what I do in my garage which I'm very limited to because I have so many machines in there I can't move. So the idea was, I was going to get my building built which I went through the procedure to get it done and thanks to you guys I got it, I got my variance to build it due to my property problems. I got my variance and my Building Permit and those things are going through right now. I'm not asking anything of anybody that I've never asked before. I served my time in the military. I did thirty years in the military. I went to two wars. I served in the FAA and I have forty-one years of government service honorably. I believe I've earned my right to pursue my dreams as a citizen of this country. I think I've given a little bit more than most people in this room.

Chairperson Cardone: Your application says that this for a Special Use Permit for a Home Occupation.


Mr. Shapiro: Yes maam. The home use permit is based on, I guess, the Town's formula of I work out of my own home doing my own thing not bothering the public. This is not a business open to the public. I want to make that clear. There will be no people going in and out. My intention is to have security put in. Every firearm is put in a safe at night. The bolts are taken out of the weapons and the weapons are made unfireable and unusable. That's the way I deal with it because I'm a very safe person when it comes to this stuff. I did aviation safety for over thirty years and I'm a safety freak when it comes to this kind of stuff…firearms especially, so…

Chairperson Cardone: And you're applying…you're applying for a license as a Dealer though?

Mr. Shapiro: No, no. I have a license from the State of New York right now that I just got to go pick up in Goshen that says I am a gunsmith. If you look at the application and I can show you an application if you want me to bring one in that shows Dealer and then it says specifically gunsmith. I have applied for gunsmith and it was approved by the State of New York. I was approved tentatively by the ATF and then I was told with the little whammy that they must have cooperation between the Town, the local Municipality and in order for me to do this and that so the Feds don't get into a hassle with the Town and local and State that I be O.K.'d to go with a letter or a Permit of a variance saying that I can do this work out of my house and they will approve my FFL which is a Federal Firearms License as a gunsmith not as a dealer. I have no intention of selling firearms that's for somebody else.

Chairperson Cardone: But the types, excuse me, the types of licenses, are you applying for a Type 1 which is a…?

Mr. Shapiro: A '01' is a gunsmith or a dealer.

Chairperson Cardone: According to the website it is a Dealer in Firearms.

Mr. Shapiro: No, no, no maam. You got to understand if you…if you look at it…when you fill out the application there are three slots on it. There's gunsmith, there's collector and there is…is dealer. I am not a dealer. A Dealer in Firearms means a) you accept guns in from other places and you sell them to people, you do a NICS check which is a National Identified Criminal Systems check which is a mandatory thing on a…and a paperwork trails of a…of a ATF Form 4473 which is required for every purchase of every firearm that anybody purchases in this State or any State in the United States. These things are required by the United States Government as a precedent as a dealer. As a gunsmith I only am required to put in stuff in the register. I have a register. The weapon comes in the serial number, the model number, the persons name, the person's address and the phone point of contact. When the weapon is released it is put in a box that…and only then when that work order is tied off and done, that firearm is then shipped by a UPS out. It is picked up physically by a UPS driver or a FedEx driver and it leaves my premises and it comes out of my book at that point. That's the legality of it. I am not dealing in firearms. I'm repairing firearms.

Mr. Donovan: Let me see if I can understand it? So you're going to repair…I live in Ohio…

Mr. Shapiro: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: …I picked up something that's my father's World…

Mr. Shapiro: Exactly.

Mr. Donovan: …World II and I overnight it to you.

Mr. Shapiro: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: You fix it and I guess what I'm a little confused…when you were here last time…

Mr. Shapiro: What?

Mr. Donovan: …what you told us is 'these are my own personal things… 

Mr. Shapiro: Well, in…in…a

Mr. Donovan: …I restore things basically for myself'. I'm just to…

Mr. Shapiro: Mr.… Mr. 

Mr. Donovan: …figure out…

Mr. Shapiro: Mr. Donovan I didn't have an FFL so I could not deal with people outside. But I demonstrated one of my Enfield rifles that I restored on the website and I had like fifty calls from people 'boy, can you do that for me? That's beautiful work.' So that's a person in Ohio like let's say your father brought home an Enfield from World War II and he lived in Cleveland, he could not send me that firearm because I don't have an FFL. But him as an owner of that firearm if I have an FFL, its his weapon by the United States Government's mandate, he can mail that firearm to me. I put it in my register. I take it apart. I do the necessary work on it. I put it back together. I take it out to the test site, fire it, proof it, bring it back in, clean it, put it back in the box, close out my register and call UPS. Done. Goodbye.

Chairperson Cardone: But that is still a business and what you…and I'm looking at the minutes from the last time that you were here and you were specifically asked if you were going to have a business. And you said 'no…

Mr. Shapiro: And, yeah all… 

Chairperson Cardone: …this building is for personal use only'.

Mr. Shapiro: Right. Grace, at the time when I decided to do this it was basically for me. Then I got these call from these people and they said you need to do this but the only way to do this is to get the Federal Firearms License. And I cannot do it without the Federal approval. And without your approval I can't get the Federal approval. So it puts me in a catch 22. So basically I can still only do my own stuff which I've been doing all along anyhow but this allows me an opportunity to enjoy my retirement and…and a to get a reputation as doing the job right, which I do. 

Mr. McKelvey: That's after you were granted the variance before you went out and advertised.

Mr. Shapiro: No I didn't.

Mr. McKelvey: Well, how these…

Mr. Shapiro: No I didn't.

Mr. McKelvey: …people…

Mr. Shapiro: A guy asked me, we were talking about…or we…we do restorations on an Enfield site and a guy says well let me see what you got and then he put it on and he said 'oh wow, can you do something for me?' And then before I know it I had fifty phone calls, like I said. It wasn't advertising. It was just talking. It sold itself. 

Chairperson Cardone: Does anyone else have any questions?

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, before we go any further, counsel would you please indicate to the audience here what's required? Because what I'm reading and what was prepared and what's required to achieve a Special Use especially of this nature doesn't match up with the paperwork that we've received. So if you could?

Mr. Shapiro: Everything that I…that I put in was given to me by the Town people to do and that's what I did. I followed the procedure I was given by (inaudible).

Mr. Donovan: Did you want me to read the requirements, Ron, for a Special Use Permit?

Mr. Hughes: Yes, please. 

Mr. Donovan: Do you have those in front of you?

Mr. Hughes: I do.

Mr. Shapiro: I followed what I was given.

Mr. Donovan: You can read it faster than me.

Mr. Hughes: Well no I can't because I broke my glasses today and I only have one lense.

Mr. Shapiro: Well basically I followed the information that I was given to do this and I don't know anything else other than what I was given to follow through. I think I did everything by the procedure.

Chairperson Cardone: In the meantime…

Mr. Shapiro: And then some.

Chairperson Cardone: …I have the report from the County; their recommendation is Local Determination.

Mr. Shapiro: That's what they said to me up there at the Sheriff's office, local determination.  

Mr. Hughes: I'd like to go back to the minutes too when we're done with this round of it and point out some things that were stated the last time. The criteria for the issuance of Special Permits…

Mr. Maher: I'll read it.

Mr. Donovan: Is this out of our Code or out of a…?  

Mr. Hughes: This is by Professor John Nolan who was commissioned by the State of New York to interpret for the public…

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: …in plain language what's required. So that no one can be confused.

Mr. Shapiro: I only used what I was given.

Mr. Donovan: Right because we have our own special…this is a Special Permit as a Home Occupation which may be just slightly different from what Mike's about to read but…

Mr. Hughes: Well, let's read both of them so that maybe we can make some sense of it. 

Mr. Maher: The title is criteria for the issuance of Special Use Permits. Great care must be taken by the Municipality to set reasonable conditions to be attached to those grantings of Special Use Permits and great care taken by the issuing Board or body to see those conditions are indeed complied with by the applicant. Planning Boards and Zoning Boards of Appeals are administrative boards; they have no power to legislate. A basic principal of administrative law is that whenever a legislative body be it Congress, State legislature, a Town board, a Village board and so on delegates authority to an administrative agency such delegation must be accompanied by standards or criteria to guide the exercise of that authority. While it is not a zoning case for our purposes here the Court of Appeals it is a matter of base summarizes this point nicely. The legislature may constitutionally delegate rule-making authority to an administrative agency only if it furnishes the agency with at least a broad outline in which to act. Certainly the Commissioner has no authority to create rules and regulations without a statutory predicate either express or implied. Such action would be tantamount to legislation by administration fiat and by definition irrational. And Ron has a…do you have (inaudible) Dave?

Mr. Donovan: No, I would just focus in on the Home Occupation portion of it because in fact sometimes it gets into a principal permitted use that's allowed by Special Permit which has special conditions attached to it. This is a little…slightly different what we're talking about this evening. 

Mr. Hughes: Can you cite to the public the things that are required to achieve that use?

Mr. Donovan: Well it's a home occupation so it talks…what I'm more…quite frankly what I'd like to talk about is the condition of the variance. That's why I asked the question about what you were going to do there, whether they your guns on not…

Mr. Shapiro: All originally.

Mr. Donovan: …if I could just…

Mr. Shapiro: No.

Mr. Donovan: …just, O.K. one second. One of the conditions of the variance we granted back in December was as follows: the use of the accessory structure is specifically limited to personal non-commercial use, consistent with the applicant's testimony before this Board the accessory structure may only be used for work on vintage guns owned by the applicant and guns for his own private non-commercial use together with storage for normal and customary household items. 

Mr. Shapiro: Correct.   

Mr. Donovan: Commercial use is expressly prohibited.

Mr. Shapiro: Correct. And at that point it was that. Now I reapplied for a variance to work out of my home to override that variance. 

Mr. Donovan: Well you applied for a Special User Permit.

Mr. Shapiro: That's basically what I did. I was told to do that. 

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Right, you would have to do that.

Mr. Shapiro: That's what I did.

Chairperson Cardone: I have a letter from I guess a neighbor…

Mr. Shapiro: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: To whom it may concern: My name is Margaret Keenan and I've lived in the Fleetwood development for forty-five years. I am opposed to any commercial business operation in this development. Fleetwood has always been a residential area where families can live and grow. This development should not be considered for commercial or business zoning. If commercial businesses are allowed to operate in this residential area they will undoubtedly lessen the attractiveness and quality of this being zoned residential. Our roads cannot and should not handle the additional business traffic and deliveries. Our children have no sidewalks to walk on in our development and must use the road. Commercial traffic will increase the risk of accidents to our children. Finally I do not think a business dealing in weapons should be allowed in any residential area not the least in Fleetwood. Thank you, Margaret Keenan.

Do we have any questions or statements from…? Yes, please use the microphone. Please identify yourself and give your address.

Ms. Weckeman: My name is Marge Weckeman, 5 Crestwood Court. My first question would be is there rules and regulations pertaining to this type of thing? Because the second letter that came is when be I became aware that he wanted to do a business pertaining to guns because it says as such. I'm a little…unsure of that, I don't see a need or understand why he would put that in a family atmosphere. If you came to our development you would see that. Also I don't think anyone else or I don't know if everyone knows what he originally…I just assumed when he dug up the tree he was going to put a big screen house in. I never imagined a business. But I would like to know how to go about getting the rules and regulations for this type of thing, you know, putting in a business such as this because guns in our community and our…the family communities concerns me.

Chairperson Cardone: Well he is following the proper procedure. He had to make an application…

Ms. Weckeman: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: …for this Special Use Permit and then its up to the Board to make a decision based on the facts that from what we have read, what we have seen and what we hear this evening.

Ms. Weckeman: O.K. My question, my other question would be how do you define Special Permit? To define it, how does the Board define it? What, what…

Mr. Donovan: Mike did it before.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Maher: Your turn now Dave.

Ms. Weckeman: I mean, again…

Chairperson Cardone: That's what Mr. Maher read before what the definition was.

Ms. Weckeman: Right I heard some of it and you know sometimes you need to read it yourself and to get the whole picture but again I'm not understanding all of it maybe. But the definition is…this is going to be a public business…?

Mr. Shapiro: No its not.

Chairperson Cardone: Excuse me, only one at a time.  

Ms. Weckeman: It would appear that it might be a business per se. It's not like…I don't know, it doesn't seem to belong, per se. It concerns me greatly to have such a thing. (Inaudible) And will this be decided this evening? Will we know something now or would have to continue to wonder? 

Chairperson Cardone: The Board as I stated at the beginning, first of all the Public Hearing is still open, first we would have to close the Public Hearing and then after closing it we would have up to sixty-two days to make a decision. It's possible we could make a decision this evening but it is also possible that we would not make a decision this evening.

Ms. Weckeman: O.K. My other question is can I get a copy of what's in that book if I went to the Town Hall tomorrow, can I have it?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, you could and I believe that it's…is it on-line, Jerry?

Ms. Weckeman: I tried looking. I did try looking.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, it is on-line.

Ms. Weckeman: It doesn't give this one because it said something about not always zoned together and I'm like, O.K. this is not making sense to me. 

Chairperson Cardone: All right.

Ms. Weckeman: In other words, the criteria didn't necessarily meet up with say this Town or that Town because it listed it in a different place.

Chairperson Cardone: Did you go to the Town of Newburgh website?

Ms. Weckeman: I did. But then again I'm not as computer literate…I'd like to be but I did.

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Canfield do you think you could make it any clearer for this lady?

Mr. Canfield: Do you have access to the website?

Ms. Weckeman: Yes, the Town of Newburgh. 

Mr. Canfield: O.K. Then if you could write this section down 185-3, that's definitions and in there will be a definition of a Special Use Permit and also a definition for a Home Occupation. Just go down to the bottom of the page and click on Zoning and Ordinances and then when the menu comes up 185-3 is the section you want. 

Ms. Weckeman: O.K. Thank you. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Do we have anyone else who would like to make a statement or ask…? Yes, and please use the microphone.

Ms. Keenan: Hi I'm Sharon Keenan; I live at 15 Fleetwood Drive. I don't know you (To Mr. Shapiro) at all, right? O.K. 

(Inaudible)

Ms. Keenan: Right. I'm just saying I don't know him so…I would just like to know is there any kind of Ordinance or anything of this kind of business with the distance from a school? No?

Chairperson Cardone: It's not in…

Mr. Donovan: Not a local Town of Newburgh Ordinance.

Ms. Keenan: O.K., O.K. And also I just wanted to know does this like…if this is approved or anything…I'm just afraid that it just opens the door to other people looking to buy a house just for this reason to open a business in a residential area. You know, because I just really like it, you know, quiet and I can walk my dog at night you know without any traffic and I know his business won't bring any traffic but I'm just looking towards the future. You know because people walk their baby carriages and you know, that's just what I'm concerned about in the future that its a nice, you know, pretty residential area and you know, that's all I'm worried about. I know this business wouldn't do it but I'm just saying in the future I just think that things like this opens the door, you know, to people, you know…

Mr. Shapiro interrupting (Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, could you use the microphone?

Chairperson Cardone: And you should address the Board.

Ms. Keenan: I'm sorry, I'm sorry. But I'm just saying that I think that these kind of things open up the door to other kind of businesses and you can't discriminate against them in the future. Somebody wants to open up, you know, a sex shop or some other kind of shop who knows, who knows you can't say you can't because, you know, that would be biased and that's my concerns. You know, I just like the community the way it is, you know, and it’s a joy to live there because we do have this kind of area where people look out for each other; it's very quiet, you can walk the street.

Chairperson Cardone: We have all visited the site. In fact, I revisited it again the other day. 

Mr. Donovan: Maybe I'll try to answer Ron's question too and I'll actually… 

Ms. Keenan: I can't sell my house now because the market's terrible. I don't want to move. Thank you.

Mr. Donovan: But the application is for a Home Occupation. So let's read the definition for a Home Occupation, which requires a Special Permit. And that is as follows: Any gainful occupation or profession customarily conducted within a dwelling by the residents thereof clearly secondary to the use of the dwelling for living purposes and which does not change the character of the structure as a residence. So that's…no not any business in the world could come in, it would have to be customarily conducted within a dwelling by the residents thereof and clearly secondary to the use of the dwelling. They list, the Code lists permissible Home Occupation include: art studio, dress making, offices for a clergyman, lawyer, physician, dentist, architect, engineer and as we found out last month, they specifically exclude a barbershop or beauty parlor, restaurant, animal hospital or commercial animal breeding. O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Ron, did you have…?

Mr. Hughes: Yes, the points that supposed to be proven to achieve a Special Use Permit.

Mr. Donovan: Well I don't know that there's points to be proven I think that it’s a use that can special or needs to have special conditions attached to it. 

Mr. Hughes: And from what you just read about from within the residence…that disqualifies it automatically because he looking to put it into an exterior building right off the bat. And I'd like to know when the Federal Arms application was filed for because we approved this late in December, there's another Permit that shows up here in February and in the meantime we hear we get a call of people wanting to know that its been approved to push forward the application. It appears from what I have observed and what I have listened to and I'll review the minutes if anyone wants to do so and it may take a few more minutes extra to do so but I would like everybody to be clear what we were told and what its evolved to are so night and day from each other. Any time that Mr. Shapiro was asked about commercial or monetary repair…no, no, no, no, no it was all personal and all collector, all my own stuff and now we have an operation here, which isn't consistent and won't be handled within the home dwelling. So I don't know if Mr. Shapiro would feel comfortable if we re-read the minutes to remind him what he said in the beginning. 

Mr. Shapiro: I know exactly what I said. 

Mr. Hughes: Then you have no problem with us reviewing this?

Mr. Shapiro: (Inaudible) problems with it because I filed that application with the ATF at the end of the month after that came back to me. 

Mr. Hughes: And you think that that makes it O.K.?

Mr. Shapiro: No.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, O.K. I just wanted to make sure.

Mr. Shapiro: I'm not saying anything (inaudible) what I saying is…

Mr. Hughes: It appears as though you think we're not listening to you.

Mr. Shapiro: What I'm saying is, I applied…

Ms. Drake: Please use the microphone.

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me.

Chairperson Cardone: Please use the microphone. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me.

Chairperson Cardone: You can take it off of the…

Mr. Shapiro: I applied to the ATF at the end of December when this was all decided, about this, because I had done…

Mr. Hughes: So you didn't even have a week?

Mr. Shapiro: When I put that thing on the site after that guy told me to do it, he came right back at me and told me this. So I'm just going by what the conjecture was at the time. Not any intention of doing a business at that point until this came back. That's a fact.

Mr. Hughes: You don't have me convinced.

Mr. Shapiro: I'm sorry. I'm sorry but that that wasn't my intent.

Mr. Hughes: The road to hell was paved with good intentions. 

Mr. Shapiro: We know that. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. 

Mr. Shapiro: I'm not…

Mr. Hughes: I'm not…

Mr. Shapiro: I'm not looking to go to hell. 

Mr. Hughes:  …not in the ninth grade…don't do that stuff… to me or my Board.

Mr. Shapiro: I'm not doing that to your Board. 

Mr. Hughes: Well maybe…

Mr. Shapiro: I'm not trying to.

Mr. Hughes: You're damn right you're not doing it to us.

Mr. Shapiro: I never said I was.

Mr. Hughes: I said you were.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have…do we have any other…

Mr. Shapiro: I'm sorry you're taking it that way, Ron.

Mr. Hughes: Well that's the way it is.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board? Yes, please…please use the microphone.

Ms. Weckeman: My question is during the holidays I did not attend the first meeting and I just said I thought it was going to be a screen house when I saw him digging up the tree in the backyard last summer or fall and now its going to be something else, an added structure for possibly a business. I'm a little unsure of…how this was presented. Maybe that would be a better way of saying it. Am I saying it correctly for that?

Chairperson Cardone: You mean how this was initially presented?

Ms. Weckeman: Yes, because as I just said, I thought it was a screen house and now he somehow managed to go from…my own assumption no one told me I just assumed…people do that it's now going to be possibly a business of some type. 

Chairperson Cardone: All right, I will read the minutes because I'm sure that Mr. Hughes would like to have those read. They are also on-line so anybody can access them on-line at the Town of Newburgh website. 'What type of work would you be doing in this?'  That was a question that I asked. Mr. Shapiro responded - 'Well I have my machines, you know, my workshop, I have a hobby I work on firearms. I restore them, old, old, WWII, WWI…it's my hobby I have a personal, you know, restoring them. For myself.' My question - 'Will you be doing any testing on them?' 'No, there's no testing or anything on the property. What it is I restore the stocks, I refinish the metal and it's basically for myself.'  Mrs. Eaton asked - 'Would you be selling these?' Mr. Shapiro - 'No these are my own personal things. This is what I, this is what I've been waiting to do all these years and I haven't been able to as an FAA inspector, I go to accidents and look at wrecks and you know, do the paperwork of the FAA. But right now, I'm looking forward to being for me, you know, to pursue my hobby and to enjoy my retirement.' Mrs. Eaton asked - 'Would they be stored in the garage?' 'No, they are stored in safes in the house. There's three safes. Everything goes in the safe. I don't play around with that kind of stuff. I have a Federal Firearms License and I don't want to lose it. So security is one. Basically it's to hold my machinery.' Let me just see if…I think then it just gets into the building coverage and there's a lot of discussion about the size of the property and the amount of the property the building would be covering. Later the question was asked if there would be electric in there and Mr. Shapiro answered 'For right now I would run an extension cord just to do what I'm doing, other than that as soon as I get enough money then I will have electric in there.' Mr. Manley asked what type of noise these machines make and Mr. Shapiro said 'None'. And Mr. Manley said 'None whatsoever?' Mr. Shapiro 'No, you can't even hear them run.' Then, the Public Hearing was closed and when we came back Mr. McKelvey said 'I don't see any problem with it, with the Town line being behind it its not infringing on the neighbors' and I stated 'Do think we should add maybe, consider some stipulations to that? Because some things were brought up in the Public Hearing about not having a business run from the location. Someone asked a question about selling. Was there going to be any sales?' Mr. Hughes said - 'Yes'. Mr. McKelvey - 'Yes, I think we should put that in there.' Mr. Hughes said ' If the attorney would just add the condition that it’s a generic shop for the man's hobby' that it…Mr. Donovan said 'That's for personal use only'. And that's what happened. 

Mr. Hughes: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: You're welcome.

Ms. Drake: I do have a question in reference to the definition of Home Occupation. It does state that it has to be in the dwelling and therefore if this is an accessory use… accessory building, does that…?

Mr. Donovan: I think you'd have to analyze that on a case-by-case basis because it says customarily conducted within a dwelling. So, I mean it's conceivable to have a use that could be a Home Occupation customarily conducted outside the dwelling. So I don't think that's what you want to hang your hat on. 

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Anything else from the Board? Or the public? Just identify yourself and your address please.

Mr. Garcia: Good evening, Abraham Garcia 1 Parkwood Lane, Jeff Shapiro's neighbor. Jeff could run those machines 24/7. I don't hear anything. I don't see anything. It's enclosed. The same thing that he proposed for is also enclosed. And as far as people fearing…they hear guns and they like, oh my god, what's going on, what's happening? They shouldn't be fearing what he's repairing. He's not there selling like the gunsmith in the Town of Montgomery down the road off of 280; he's selling guns there. Jeff's not selling guns, he's repairing guns. Ship them out. It's almost like an E bay business. You ship it in you ship it out. Everything is done through the Internet. Nobody comes to his house…just nobody goes there. And as far as the neighbors concerned about they want to keep Fleetwood nice and quiet and everything that's good and all but the fact is that these kids are growing up, they're getting cars, everybody is speeding through there, we don't have sidewalks, I already was mentioned we don't have sidewalks. People walk through there with their babies. I have a three year old. I have twins due any day that's my biggest concern. The last thing I'm worried about is Jeff repairing the gun. I'm worried about my kids getting run over by a car from the neighbors' kids running through and their friends coming through at 50 - 60 an hour. And, yes I am qualified to say that because I radar qualified with the New York City Police Department. I mean I don't know what else to tell you.

Chairperson Cardone: I think people were concerned about trucks coming in there for the same reason.

Mr. Garcia: Trucks, UPS comes through there, delivery trucks come through, repair trucks come through there that weigh in excess of 30,000 lbs. There's an ice cream delivery truck or something that comes through there almost every evening. He's weighing in at close to 24,000 lbs. Nobody is complaining about that. Everybody is worried about a UPS truck. A UPS truck and FedEx trucks come through there in the morning and the late afternoons and that's it. They do a one run each, maybe two and Louie the postman comes through with his little truck, his little red truck. There's really no commercial traffic as far as what's Jeff's intends on doin here with his structure and the gunsmithing business and a…you know, everybody is concerned what's going on but my biggest concern is that abomination over there on 1 Fleetwood Drive. 

Chairperson Cardone: We are not discussing that this evening.

Mr. Garcia: I understand that but it is a public forum so I do have the right to speak my mind. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Does this relate to…does this relate to the topic that we're on tonight which is the Special Use Permit?

Audience Member: Yes.

Inaudible.

Chairperson Cardone: Identify yourself for the record and your…

Inaudible.

Ms. Gennarelli: Could you pull the microphone down towards you? We are recording this. Thank you.

Ms. Keenan: Margaret Keenan. In the '80s someone tried to open up a gun shop in their house next door to me. They went before the Town Board. He was having a mail order business and it was denied. The name was Jerry Schmidt. And the gun shop does make noise because the kids hear the machinery running. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Let's …excuse me. We cannot have arguments going on. All, all remarks need to be addressed to the Board only.

Mr. Shapiro: Maam, when I run my machinery the garage doors are closed in the norm. The only time I open up that garage door is to let some air in and then I close it. So the hearing about the machinery going that's…that's not true. And my neighbor here can verify it cause he live right next door to me. Now if he had any complaints he would be the one that would be runnin his mouth to you right now and that's not the case.  

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Shapiro: So what you just heard is conjecture.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Thank you. 

Mr. Garcia: I live directly across the street from Jeff. I could throw a rock, a pebble across the street to Jeff's door. I do not hear his machines running. Never do I hear his machines running.

Chairperson Cardone: And what was your address again?

Mr. Garcia: 1 Parkwood Lane.

Chairperson Cardone: Parkwood. O.K.

Mr. Garcia: Directly across the street.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Garcia:  There's only two houses on the street.

Chairperson Cardone: No I was just trying to see which house it was…if it was on the other street or that street. 

Mr. Garcia: I am directly across the street from Jeff. There's only 1 Parkwood and 2 Parkwood Lane. There's only two houses there and then the water shed up the hill. The water shed up the hill that's abandoned.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Garcia: That's it. There's no noise. If anybody is making noise it's me with my chop saw doin renovations inside my house.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Garcia: Not Jeff's gunsmithing machines. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Thank you.

Mr. Garcia: You're welcome. 

Mr. Handzel: I'm Stan Handzel, 4 Birchwood Lane. I'm a neighbor of Jeffrey's and as a neighbor I approve of his request for a Special Use Permit to conduct his hobby.   

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have anything else from either the Board or the public?

Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Ms. Drake: You've got one more. 

Chairperson Cardone: Oh there's one more? O.K. Sorry.

Mr. Corbin: Good evening. My name is Bill Corbin; I live at 3 Fleetwood Drive in the Town of Newburgh. When I heard about the Special Use Permit application for gunsmithing and even previous discussion about doing gunsmithing work at home we'd ask what are the safety aspects? What are the concerns? I have kids too. I'm concerned about gun safety as I think every parent is…law abiding individual. Mr. Shapiro stated all the guns are going to be in safes. I know of several people in the development one who has in excess of twenty guns in a collection, unregulated, probably even more of a hazard than this which is no ammunition being stored on site for the guns. Everything kept in a locked safe as would be required if he's going to do this work by a Federal Firearms License. He would be mandated to have that by law that's the not something that would be…he could leave them lying around. So that's a consideration. Jeff certainly has experience with guns, as you would imagine with his experience in the military so I don't think that's a concern. And in terms of the question about traffic going in and out I don't think that UPS is going to be dropping off specially for these. They make one-zone specific routes. They plan these out. They map these. They don't make special runs not for low volume, which this is supposedly going to be, low volume. They're not going to make special runs because that disrupts their entire network of deliveries. Anybody familiar with operations research and optimized delivery routes will understand that they are just not going to do that. There's no benefit to that financially. So I don't think truck…additional truck traffic really is a concern here. A…it's going to be run as a mail order as long as it's run as a mail order operation I don't have a problem on that basis and the issue of gun safety I also won't have any concerns I don't think that that's a topic to be concerned with. I myself hold guns, I have safes, I have gunlocks. I don’t see an issue with it as long as its done properly and with respect. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Corbin: You're welcome. 

Ms. Drake: I have one more question. Mr. Shapiro you said you would be testing the guns taking to the range to test them, what…?

Audience member interrupting (Inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: Use the mic…

Mr. Shapiro: ...they'll be taken off the premises most likely to Sullivan County and will be fired in a quarry.

Ms. Drake: O.K. That actually wasn't my question. I was getting to my question but…my question was, the ammo that you're going to be using to fire these, where is that kept and how do you get that if these guns are not yours…will that ammo be…?

Mr. Shapiro: I have ammunition of the same caliber in small amounts which is enough, you only need to test with two, three, four rounds, its not a lot.

Ms. Drake: So therefore you'll only be doing receiving guns to repair that you already…

Mr. Shapiro: Yes.

Ms. Drake: …have the ammo for…


Mr. Shapiro: Yes.

Ms. Drake: …its not just any type of gun its… 

Mr. Shapiro: No.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. Shapiro: No. I have…I have so many different kinds of military firearms. I have just about every caliber.

Ms. Drake: Oh, O.K.

Mr. Shapiro: Of the firearm that I would be dealing with anyhow so it's not a big deal. It’s a…it's a non-entity.

Mr. Maher: I have one question. Mr. Shapiro, you said you had applied for the license for the FFL at the end of the month?

Mr. Shapiro: At the end of the month. Right after you guys. I put it in the mail.

Mr. Maher: O.K. Now my question is on the 23rd during the meeting though, when asked I have…this is actually your statement…I have a Federal Firearm License…

Mr. Shapiro: I have a collector of curios and relics, an 03, yes I do have an FFL but it's for an 03. 

Mr. Maher: No, I…

Mr. Shapiro: An 03 if for old firearms. There's seven categories of…of firearms. The 01 is a dealer or a gunsmith. The 03, which is the curios and relics, is a person that collects firearms for his own use. 

Chairperson Cardone: But once you have an 01 then you may be a dealer. You're saying that you going…

Mr. Shapiro: No, no, no, no, no, no, no, no, no… 

Chairperson Cardone: …a gunsmith but the 01…

Mr. Shapiro: The 01 does…no no…

Chairperson Cardone: …says a dealer in firearms. 

Mr. Shapiro: Excuse me; the ATF is very specific about what they told me. They said gunsmithing only or they'll take the a…they take the license and that's why I'm going to stick to the group. I'm going to stick to my grounds as a gunsmith not as a dealer. You gotta understand the terminologies of dealer in firearms and gunsmith. If you go to Gander Mountain they have a gunsmith on-site, which is part of the dealer that's a combined 01. I only have one category of that 01 of that 01 that's the way they explained it. An the agent was specific you are to deal only in repairs of firearms that's replacing barrels, doing trigger work, doing stock work and that's it. Not on pistols, only on rifles and that's what I put in for. I'm not going to be working on pistols so if anybody is concerned about pistols it's not happening. It's rifles only. 

Ms. Drake: What would be required to then change that 01 permit to a dealer if someone wanted to do that? What is…

Mr. Shapiro: There is no way because I would have to have a variance to have a business as a dealer out of my house and we already know that's not going to happen.

Ms. Drake: I'm just saying how….

Mr. Shapiro: And that's what Mr. Schmidt tried to do. He was doing a mail order business; he was selling firearms, dealing.

Ms. Drake: What would the Feds there want if you didn't come to us and we didn't know about it but you went to the Feds and changed it?

Mr. Shapiro: They will not issue the license period. They have an agreement with the States that the Local…the Local Ordinances are to be honored and the ATF will only honor a requirement for the application if the Town or the Municipality is in agreement.

Chairperson Cardone: I think I would have…

Mr. Shapiro: Or it's not going to happen.

Chairperson Cardone: …to hear that from the agent. I would have to hear that from the agent. And based on what I heard at the last meeting, which was not in truth, I would have to hear that from the agent that that would not permit you to be a dealer. Because according to what…

Mr. Shapiro: It does not permit me to be a dealer that's what I'm trying to say.

Chairperson Cardone: …according to what…

Mr. Shapiro: She told me specifically I am not a dealer. I am a gunsmith.

Chairperson Cardone: Well they would have to tell me… 

Mr. Shapiro: I could buy firearms for myself. 

Chairperson Cardone: …specifically for me to believe it. 

Mr. Shapiro: Grace, I can only buy firearms for myself. It means that I would lose the license is what she told me. I'm only going by what I was instructed by the ATF. I don't want to go on the outside of it because the penalties are too heavy. Dealing in firearms is a different category than being a gunsmith. Dealing means selling, that means NICS checks, that means background investigations, I'm not doin it. 

Mr. Maher: So I guess the question is, what type of documentation can we receive that would state that would only allow…?

Chairperson Cardone: That would, exactly. 

Mr. Shapiro: If you would like to see the application…

Mr. Maher: Can you…can you hang on one second till I'm done. O.K. You've been interrupting everybody else…

Mr. Shapiro: I'm sorry.

Mr. Maher: So what type of documentation can you provide the Board from the ATF and/or the Federal Firearms Licensing Committee that could state they you could only be a gunsmith and not a dealer?

Mr. Shapiro: I can get a specific letter from the agent if you would like.

Mr. Maher: Well I guess it would be your…in your best interest I would imagine…

Mr. Shapiro: In my best interest, Mike is saying that what my ATF agent told me at the time I applied.

Mr. Maher: I understand, I understand that what he told you is irrelevant…

Mr. Shapiro: She. 

Mr. Maher: Regardless. It's irrelevant because it's not written down. We don't have anything we can go by obviously that the… 

Mr. Shapiro: What I'll do is…

Chairperson Cardone: The only thing we have says that an 01 is a dealer. That's the only thing that I have. 

Mr. Shapiro: What I can show you is an application, one, which shows you the categories on the top. It shows dealer and gunsmith. Only one of those blocks is checked off for me. 

Mr. Maher: Right we understand that.

Mr. Shapiro: I'm not a dealer.

Mr. Maher: The issue really is that what the fact is, does it stipulate that you can only be a gunsmith and could not change it to dealer at a future time? That's the question.

Mr. Shapiro: Oh, no, no, I could not change it. She already told me.

Mr. Maher: I understand what you're saying but that doesn't make it a law or…

Mr. Shapiro: What I'm saying is... 

Mr. Maher: …it doesn't make me feel comfortable.

Mr. Shapiro: What I'm trying to say is ATF procedure is specific. When they make a policy, this is how you do it. That's how they follow. The agents tell you this is how you do it. You fill out the application and they tell you specifically what you can do. I told her I want to be a gunsmith. She said only a gunsmith not a dealer? All right? So I said fine I don't want to be a dealer because it means too much more paperwork. This only requires a log entry. It doesn't require a NICS check. It doesn't require all the silliness. It's somebody else's firearms being sent to me for repair. I repair it. I put it in the logbook. I checked it out. I put it back in the box and I put it back on the truck.

Mr. Maher: No, I understand.

Mr. Shapiro: That's the only thing.

Mr. Maher: I understand what you want to do it's a question of making us feel comfortable what you're going to do.

Mr. Shapiro: This is what I am going to do.

Mr. McKelvey: I think we need to have the letter from the agent.

Mr. Shapiro: Like I can get Nancy to talk to anyone of you. Just give me your phone number and I'll have you call you.

Mr. McKelvey: No, what we want to do is see a letter from the agent saying…

Mr. Shapiro: We can do that. Because she specifically told me, you will not be a dealer, period. You can buy firearms for yourself and your own use but you cannot sell them. That's what she told me right up front.

Mr. Maher: And would there be a stipulation also regarding the fact that it’s a rifle product only and not any pistols.

Mr. Shapiro: Well pistols…pistols is another thing, you see cause it…State law takes precedence on on New York State law the ATF tells you that the State law takes precedence. The State law in…in…in…in New York State states that you must to purchase a firearm, you have to get a serial number, get a model number and you have to go to your local municipality, Orange County and you have to have it added to your firearms permit, period.

Mr. Maher: I'm familiar with that.

Mr. Shapiro: And there's no…and there's no and there's no if ands or buts. The ATF has no, no qualms about that. Now if I was running a store like Schmidt was going to do, in and out, in and out that's a different animal. I'm not doing that. This is repair. This has nothing to do with selling. When you're selling a firearm it’s a totally different procedure.

Mr. Maher: Right but you've stated you're going to repair only rifles and not guns.

Mr. Shapiro: Only rifles, I have no intentions of doing pistols and my agent was specific with me. She says, you're only going to do rifles and I agreed. I'm not doing pistols. There's too much paperwork involved. 

Ms. Drake: Right, so the letter that your going to get from the agent that says you're only going to be a gunsmith will that also needs to include you're only going to be dealing with rifles. 

Mr. Shapiro: That's right. And I'll make sure she puts it like that.

Ms. Drake: That's what we're saying we need from you. That's what we're saying.

Mr. Shapiro: That's your reassurance. You got it. I will call her tomorrow morning and I will get something from her and I will provide you people what you requested.

Ms. Drake: Thank you.

Mr. Shapiro: You're not asking the sun and the moon and the stars. I don't think its anything that's not feasible. 

Mr. Donovan: If that's the Boards inclination that they want that information then they should hold the Public Hearing open so. O.K.

Chairperson Cardone. Right. Right.

Ms. Drake: Right.

Chairperson Cardone: And perhaps we can get some information also.

Mr. Shapiro: I'll even give you a copy of an application for the license and you'll see there's the different categories on top and you check off the block that you want and the category of the license you want. There's 01, 02, 03, 07…all different ones. 

Chairperson Cardone: I think that's not the issue, at least for me, the issue is once you have an 01 no matter what you've checked off… 

Mr. Shapiro: Then it's a violation of the…

Chairperson Cardone: …what does that entitle you to do? That's what the question is.

Mr. Shapiro: Grace, it's a violation of the ATF, period. If I go outside the windows that I've been allowed I'll lose my license and I got too much time invested to want to lose it after going through all of this. Why would I do something stupid like that? 

Mr. Maher: Could you also present us with a copy of your application that you presented to the a…?

Mr. Shapiro: Yeah, I got a new one I got put in. I threw the other one out because they voided it. They voided the original. Cause it wouldn't go through so they voided it so I got the new one but I can't proceed on it until you guys say O.K. So I'm not even going to put in for it cause I have to get photographs, I have to get re-fingerprinted again and this you know, is more money, more time so unless this is a go I'm not even applying for it until you guys say O.K., you say an O.K I'm not applying.  

Ms. Drake: So you're going the copy of the letter and get us…

Mr. Shapiro: I'm going to get a copy of the letter.

Ms. Drake: …and a copy of the application you would be submitting, your…

Mr. Shapiro: I will give you a copy of my present application.

Ms. Drake: Completed. Filled out.

Mr. Shapiro: Completed.

Mr. Maher: You don't…you said you do not have a copy of the other one?

Mr. Shapiro: No.

Ms. Drake: And we'll have that in time for the next meeting…which is…?

Mr. McKelvey: When is the next meeting, Betty?

Ms. Gennarelli: April 23rd.

Ms. Drake: April 23rd.

Mr. Shapiro: You got it.

Mr. Hughes: I have a question if I may?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, you may, Mr. Hughes.

Mr. Hughes: I'm really confused now. You just told us that you sent another application in and…

Mr. Shapiro: I…no, no, no, no, no…

Mr. Hughes: Let me finish.

Mr. Shapiro: Ron, you're not listening.

Mr. Hughes: Let me finish.

Chairperson Cardone: Just let him finish first. 

Mr. Hughes: You're not the one running the program here. Our Chairperson is and you will listen and speak when it's your turn to speak. I have the floor. Make no mistake about this.

Mr. Shapiro: You have the floor.

Mr. Hughes: You got to get the last word in every time. I think you're bull sh**ing us. 

Mr. Shapiro: No, I'm not Ron. I'm trying to…I'm trying to work with you guys.

Mr. Hughes: Counsel. Chairperson. You just told us not four sentences ago that you sent in a new application and then two sentences than that you said you weren't going to send one in until you have our approval. Which way is it?

Mr. Shapiro: I haven't sent anything in yet. That's what I'm trying to say…

Mr. Hughes: So you're lying?

Mr. Shapiro: …because I'm waiting on…No. You're confusing the issue.

Mr. Hughes: I'm not confusing.

Mr. Shapiro: I have not sent it in. It's not even complete yet.

Mr. Hughes: When the minutes come out and what's… 

Mr. Shapiro: Fine. 

Mr. Hughes: …recorded on the…

Mr. Shapiro: Well when the minutes come out, what you say, maybe I tripped over myself and said something stupid but I'll tell you what, I did not submit and my wife will show the fact that I did not do it. The paperwork is still sitting on the kitchen table.

Chairperson Cardone: So then how could the agent tell us what you've requested if you haven't requested it?

Mr. Shapiro: You're not listening. The first application…

Chairperson Cardone: Oh, I'm listening.

Mr. Shapiro: …that went in in December.

Chairperson Cardone: I'm listening.

Mr. Hughes: We're all listening.

Mr. Shapiro: The first application that went in in December. O.K.? They called me at the end of January. O.K.? Well we'll come out to see you and she came out and she told me this is what you've gotta do and you're not going to issue an FFL to you unless your Town is in agreement and that's why they disapproved it. They said if you can do this within thirty days we can process the application. That didn’t happen. It went over thirty days so the application is voided. I have to do the whole procedure over again.

Chairperson Cardone: Is it the wish of the Board to hold this Hearing open?

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion to hold the Public Hearing open.

Mr. Maher/Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Who was the second on that? I'm sorry.

Ms. Drake: Mike.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: No



          Michael Maher: Yes

 Grace Cardone: No

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. The ayes have it. The Hearing will be open until next month.

Mr. Shapiro: Thank you.

Mr. Donovan: Now for the people in the audience, you will not get another notice or anything in the mail so April 23rd…

Ms. Gennarelli: 23rd.

Mr. Donovan: April 23rd at 7:00 PM. If you're interested you need to be back that evening. 
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(1-1-118) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the front yard and side yard setbacks to temporarily keep accessory structures on Lot #2 of a three-lot subdivision.

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Ted Dziewiatowski.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, March 17th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on March February 18th. The applicant sent out twenty-six registered letters, twenty-two were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Chairperson Cardone: Just identify yourself for the record and you may begin. 

Mr. Weeden: My name is Howard Weeden. I am a land surveyor from Walden. The client Ted Dziewiatowski is here in the back in case you have any questions. This is a project that is currently before the Planning Board. It’s a 3-lot subdivision of 58 acres. My client has his house on the 58 acres with some outbuildings. We proposing one lot for the existing lot, one lot with the outbuildings and leaving the remainder as vacant agricultural use. We're presently before the Planning Board for approval. My client wishes to leave the outbuildings on the vacant lot #2 because he is currently using them with his farm equipment. There's some tractors and some storage in them. He has no intentions to sell the lot right now. We have a couple of notes on the map that once…if the lot is sold that the sheds and outbuildings will be removed and taken down prior to any Building Permit being issued for that lot. The Planning Board has asked us to come here and get a variance so we can leave the sheds and thereby get the Planning Board approval. 

Chairperson Cardone: And if it were to be granted there would be the stipulation that they would be removed before any other building took place?

Mr. Weeden: That's correct. There's a note in my sub-division notes stating that prior to any issuance of a Building Permit on that lot that those sheds and outbuildings will be removed and taken down and taken away. 

Mr. Donovan: What's going on in those buildings now? 

Mr. Weeden: There is some tractor storage. I think there is two tractors in the building now. There's some wood storage for firewood. He's currently using them for the rest of the property. 

Mr. Hughes: Has this been filed with the County?

Mr. Weeden: No we don't have final approval yet. We can't get final approval on the vacant lot with the outbuildings on it. It used to be where we could put the note on and state that we would take the buildings down prior to any building on that lot but now we can't do that anymore. This will get temporary use because those buildings would come down prior to any building on that lot and that would null and void the variance at that time because he wouldn't need it. 

Mr. Hughes: Counsel, would we have to condition that this be filed within so many days if the condition of approval was granted? 

Mr. Donovan: Do you mean the sub-division map?

Mr. Hughes: Yes. Well they…it needs to be filed, let's do this…State law requires that the map be filed within a year of Planning Board approval. Essentially they have 180 days with two 90-day extensions. So they have to comply with that. It also, the County has a requirement that it has to be filed within 60 days of the date the chairman signs it. So I don't know if those time frames accommodate your concern? 

Mr. Hughes: Well, what I'm getting at is in order for us to do this and have it clean all the way around, can we supercede their requirements and make a condition that it be filed right away?

Mr. Donovan: Well he can't file it until he receives his approval and…

Mr. Hughes: I meant after the approval from the Planning Board.

Mr. Donovan: Oh, can we supercede State law? No. The answer is no. Sorry. It took me a while to get there but…our variance is only good for six months anyway unless we extend it.


Mr. Hughes: O.K. I just want to be clear on the legal part of it.

Chairperson Cardone: But as long as he is before the Planning Board…

Mr. Donovan: That period...

Chairperson Cardone: …diligently pursuing it, it's extended.

Mr. Donovan: Correct. Diligently pursuing it.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes. 

Mr. Weeden: We intend to diligently pursue this as soon as we get this approval so. My client is very anxious to get this thing approved and filed.

Ms. Drake: He owns lot #1, 2 and 3 right now? 

Mr. Weeden: That's correct.

Ms. Drake: Before it's sub-divided, where is his residence right now? 

Mr. Weeden: His residence is right here on lot #1. We are proposing one point…

Ms. Drake: Six.

Mr. Weeden: 1.6 acres on lot #1.

Ms. Drake: And then you're creating lot #2. 

Mr. Weeden: Lot #2 has the outbuildings and that's a little less than an acre. 

Ms. Drake: Well my question is, are you allowed to have outbuildings on a residential lot without a dwelling? 

Mr. Donovan: Typically, no.

Mr. Hughes: No.    

Ms. Drake: So that's the variance that you're asking for then? 

Mr. Donovan: Because it's an accessory structure, accessory use but it's not accessory to anything but no, the Planning Board didn't send him to us for that. But I don't know how you accomplish that. 

Mr. Hughes: That's a tough one to do. Do you have a time machine? How else would you do it? You can't…

Mr. Weeden: Do I go back to the Planning Board to get another referral, or…?

Mr. Hughes: What section was it canned under? 185 what? Jerry?

Mr. Canfield: I'm sorry?

Mr. Hughes: Do you know what section it was canned under?

Mr. Canfield: Canned under?

Mr. Donovan: Now I think that it's just a referral from the Planning because of the side yard, the side yard or front yard?

Mr. Weeden: Front and side.

Mr. Donovan: Yeah, for the accessory buildings.

Mr. Hughes: All right but what I think is missing from the formula to make it legal is that this is a temporary situation. So there's got to be some way that we can put that on that convenience mechanism.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Ms. Drake: Temporary in what sense? Temporary until somebody buys that lot and decides to put a house on it?

Mr. Hughes: Right and that could be 10 days or 10 years.

Mr. Donovan: So let's go back to your original question Ron, and maybe we say that it has to be done within a certain period of time after map filing. That's different than what you said before; you had it within before map filing. And if we have it within a certain period of time of the map being filed as opposed to Building Permit because you're right, a Building Permit could ten, fifteen, twenty years.

Mr. Hughes: I'm left handed, you know, I see it the other way around. 

Mr. Donovan: Is that a problem for you, Howard?

Mr. Hughes: The client is here too.

Mr. Donovan: Oh, you must have played second base that was quick thinking.

Mr. Weeden: They want to put a time limit on our variance. Once we get final approval it will be such a length of time after we get our map filed that the variance is good for unless we come in and reapply.

Chairperson Cardone: Six months. 

Mr. Donovan: In other words those two buildings are accessory structures. They are not a primary use so they're not allowed to be on a stand-alone lot because there is no primary use there. So we're trying to find a way to accomplish your objective but we have to have a reasonable time period to take those down. What are we doing with the other frame barn? All three of them coming down? 

Mr. Weeden: That's the stipulation that all three of them have to come down.

Mr. Donovan: All three, all right.

Mr. Weeden: Prior to any building on that lot. 

Mr. Hughes: And you have 58 acres altogether, is that what the number was?

Mr. Weeden: Yes and they're all staggered right here. 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, and the remnant or the parent parcel you'll end up with 57 acre or 55 acres when you're done here?

Mr. Weeden: It says 50 acres here when we're all finished and there's no buildings on that.

Mr. Hughes: Being that no one has a crystal ball and no way of knowing when that lot might be built on or a Permit it's kind of hard for anybody to make a committal here from our end it or for the…?  

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me. You have to use the microphone we are recording this. If you could just step up? Thank you.  

Chairperson Cardone: I would say six months.

Mr. Dziewiatowski: Six months after the approval that the buildings would have to be taken down?

Ms. Drake: Can you also state your name for the record?

Mr. Hughes: It would be a little bit longer than that.

Chairperson Cardone: No after they get the approval from the Planning Board and they file…

Mr. Hughes: They have so many days from that to file.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. I would say six months from that date.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I'm just making sure we're all talking about that second date.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. 

Mr. Hughes: Can you deal with that?

Mr. Dziewiatowski: The reason I wanted to leave the buildings up is because I still use them. That's why we're going through this.

Mr. Hughes: We're aware of your need and we're trying to find something that will fit here but…

Mr. Dziewiatowski: So there's no way to leave the buildings up on the lot until the lot is used?

Mr. Donovan: Well the concern of the Board is that that may not…that may be a year or it may be twenty-five years so you leave the two…

Mr. Dziewiatowski: Well yeah, I understand that.

Mr. Donovan: …the two accessory structures which have…there's no primary use so it's contrary to zoning they could be there for an extended period of time. The Board is trying to avoid that.   

Mr. Dziewiatowski: Is there anyway to give like a little longer than six months? 

Mr. McKelvey: You get one six-month extension.

Mr. Dziewiatowski: I mean could I get years? A couple of years out of it? Or, no?

Mr. McKelvey:  You get one extension of six-months…

Mr. Dziewiatowski: So a year would be the most?

Mr. McKelvey: …after the six months.

Mr. Donovan: Well, I mean maybe, because the Board has to vote to give the six month extension.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: But he misfires then we've done something we shouldn't have done and that's what we're trying to avoid is so that everybody is doing what they're required to do by law. 

Mr. McKelvey: Yes, and you could get one six month extension.

Mr. Donovan: He could, that's correct.

Mr. Hughes: But then that expires we're back to here…

Mr. Donovan: Right. 

Mr. Hughes: …and we've approved something we shouldn't have done to begin with. 

Mr. Weeden: Then there's a violation on the property and the Building Department would be notified about that.

Mr. Donovan: Right.


Mr. Hughes: We're not trying to complicate the matter but you're right there.

Mr. Donovan: They prefer for us not to give them any additional work. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: We're swamped to begin with and so is the Building Department. I don't know, Counsel?

Ms. Drake: I have a question. The intent is when you sell that lot and somebody puts a house on it to take the barns down I understand that. What would you do then with that stuff that's in those barns?

Mr. Dziewiatowski: Well the tractors I'd probably sell or…

Ms. Drake: And you're not currently using them on the 50 acres remaining?

Mr. Dziewiatowski: The tractors?

Ms. Drake: Yes.

Mr. Dziewiatowski: Yes, I am.

Ms. Drake: So wouldn't you still need them on the 50 acres?

Mr. Dziewiatowski: I would, yes, you're right.

Ms. Drake: So then where would you put them?

Mr. Dziewiatowski: I guess in my garage, in my house I guess.

Ms. Drake: Or build other buildings on your existing lot.

Mr. Hughes: Are you going to stop planting and start planning houses is that your scheme?

Mr. Dziewiatowski: No.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, O.K.

Mr. Dziewiatowski: No, that's not my intention. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. good. That's a big plus for me.

Mr. Dziewiatowski: My intentions were to keep the buildings so I could keep the equipment covered to keep the 58 acres clean by mowing it and all of that. That was the object of keeping the buildings to store the equipment.

Mr. Hughes: All right. So then counsel can we condition it to the effect that if within two periods of extensions it's not completed he would have to remove them anyway and move his equipment back to his parent parcel?

Mr. Donovan: Sure the two periods of extensions is that eighteen months or is that a year?

Mr. Hughes: No, six and six. A year.

Mr. Donovan: Is that a reasonable condition to achieve your objective? If it is I'd direct the Board…

Mr. Hughes: Well do you expect to have this thing start to perk up in this market as flat as it is and…?

Mr. Dziewiatowski: Well I don't even have intentions of selling the lot right now. I had a niece that might be interested in it later but that's neither here nor there but if I could get a year I could live with that. I could...I'll take the buildings down and…

Mr. McKelvey: The first six months wouldn't start until he got approval…

Mr. Donovan: From the Planning Board.

Mr. McKelvey: The Planning Board.

Mr. Hughes: Right so that's going to put you another forty-five days from here when you go through the motions there or may sixty days.

Mr. Dziewiatowski: O.K. I can live with that.

Mr. Hughes: And that gives you a year from May 1st let's say? Give or take?

Mr. Donovan: It would depend on when he gets on the agenda and have a Public Hearing if it's a year from…

Mr. Weeden: Yes I know, I know what the agenda looks like at the Planning Board but it's really clear…

Mr. Hughes: That's why I said forty-five or sixty days if you miss the next one. Can you come up with some legal garbo that describes all of that?  

Mr. Donovan: Were you going to say legal garbage and then caught yourself? Is that what you were going to say?

Mr. Hughes: Did you see how I made the save at the last minute? Garbo because she is such a great actress. 

Mr. Donovan: Can I come up with a carefully crafted and outstanding legal rationale? Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, he usually does.

Ms. Drake: I'm still not done asking questions. Sorry. If you're looking to move those barns then at that time to the parent property, which is the fifty acres, correct? But there's no residence on the fifty acres either…

Mr. Dziewiatowski: No there isn't.  

Ms. Drake: So you can't move them to that parcel. You'd have to move them to Lot #1. Is there sufficient room to build barns or more structures on that and still meet the zoning because I don't want to have to come back here and say, well we only did one point…

Mr. Donovan: Can I interrupt for one second? Jerry, if they're accessory, if they're on the lot that's being put…are you farming that large parcel?

Mr. Dziewiatowski: Hay. 

Mr. Donovan: So is it possible that they are accessory to the farm use at that stage? If they're on Lot #3? 

Mr. Canfield: No. The agricultural exemptions apply to the requirements of the Building Permit but not zoning requirements.

Mr. Donovan: I know, I'm not going to the exemption route, I'm going to the accessory use route. If the primary use of the fifty acres of vacant land is farming are the structures associated with the farming permitted accessory structures?

Ms. Drake: If there is no residence there.

Mr. Canfield: No, it's still not.

Mr. Hughes: Only on the same parcel…

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: The fifty acres are vacant with no…

Mr. Donovan: No, I'm saying if he puts them on the fifty acres.

Mr. Canfield: Right it still becomes the same scenario as it is now. They are accessory to...they're accessory structures not accessory to use. O.K.? I think that's the issue. 

Mr. Donovan: Well they are accessory structures but…

Mr. Canfield: Accessory to a primary use of a structure.

Mr. Dziewiatowski: The primary use is the farming.

Mr. Canfield: Not as in the farming. O.K.? It's accessory structure to a primary structure not necessarily just a use.

Mr. Hughes: You couldn't get a Permit to put those same buildings on the fifty acres because there's no primary dwelling there. Is that right?

Mr. Canfield: Exactly, it's the same thing.

Mr. Donovan: That's interesting. I…

Mr. Hughes: Well that's why I…

Mr. Donovan: …respectfully disagree with co-counsel.

Mr. Hughes: Always respectfully. 

Mr. Donovan: I could be wrong but…

Ms. Drake: So therefore I'm thinking before you create Lot #1 you may want to make sure that there's sufficient acreage to Lot #1 to support future buildings that you would be building a year out from whenever you get all your approvals. 

Mr. Dziewiatowski: Probably at that point, I only have one tractor. I have a three-car garage in the house. I'd probably park the one tractor in that garage. 

Mr. Hughes: So a quick calculation on 1.6 acres, he probably could build another substantial structure and especially if it's…is that going to remain residential or under the Ag? Parcel 1. Where your house is is going to be lost to the Ag thing when you make these three new lots.

Mr. Dziewiatowski: Right. 

Mr. Hughes: Right. So you could put another building on your residential property that may be big enough to house what you have there if you had to make the move. 1.6 acres give you enough. Jerry?

Mr. Canfield: I'm sorry.

Mr. Hughes: The 1.6 acres gives him enough if he had to move those tractors onto his residential property he could put up another building there.

Mr. Canfield: Yes it appears there's enough room.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: 1.6 gives you almost…

Ms. Drake: The septic is in the middle of the backyard though…?

Mr. Donovan: All the profit out of the sale of the lot will go into building the new structures…I'm just joking.

Mr. Dziewiatowski: So basically I'm looking at at the end of the Planning Board I have a year and then they have to come down?

Mr. Hughes: Well, yes or unless you want to leave them up there and sell that parcel the way it is with the buildings there.

Chairperson Cardone: But he can't.

Mr. Hughes: But no the new person coming in that would build the lot…

Chairperson Cardone: He would be cited by the Building Department. Jerry is sitting right here.       

Mr. Hughes: Jerry? Let's say he sold the parcel the way it was with the outbuildings on it and somebody wanted to squeeze a house on there, could they do that?

Inaudible

Mr. Hughes: You'd have to remove all the buildings. You've just about an acre there.

Mr. Weeden: That's part of our notes up here. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. All right I've got a clearer picture now but…Counsel if you'll…? 

Mr. Donovan: But Jerry has got to enlighten me.

Mr. Canfield: I'd just like to go back and you got me. One for you. 

Mr. Donovan: I'm going home now. 

Mr. Hughes: Quit while you're ahead.

Mr. Canfield: If you look at 185-3 the definitions of accessory…O.K.? And it talks of the term applied to a use or structure. O.K.? So I stand corrected. So again if the accessory structures were moved to the fifty-acre parcel, which primarily is used as farming yes, you are correct a structure, is permitted. 

Mr. Donovan: Assuming that it's being farmed but.

Mr. Canfield: Correct. And again to house the farming equipment it would be accessory to the use and the definition specifically says use or structures.

Mr. Hughes: So you could move those building on the fifty-acre leftover? 

Mr. Canfield: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. So as long as you go after it and if you fail you can still go over to the fifty acres. 

Mr. Dziewiatowski: I think I got it.

Mr. Hughes: Counsel? Any special wording have to go with that or is it…?

Ms. Drake: Does he need a referral from the Planning Board back to us for that because of that being that's not what was to us?

Mr. Donovan: No, that wasn't referred to us; the setbacks were so it's a reasonable condition for us to impose to give him the year so he does not need that referral. We can do that in this situation.

Ms. Drake: But the fact that we're creating a lot with accessory structures is that another variance that's needed?

Mr. Donovan: No. 

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: And could you write a letter to their attorney at the Planning Board to advise them of the path we're taking so that everybody knows?

Mr. Donovan: I just walk upstairs.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I'd prefer to see the letter. 

Mr. Canfield: If I may, one suggestion Dave, and in the recommendation if the Board chooses to approve this and go this route with a condition of approval that that condition gets placed on the site plan or on the sub-division plan. This way it’s a permanent record and it also becomes enforceable then rather than in the future you have to go and research the ZBA decision and resolution and then the Planning Board minutes whereas its just a condition on the plan itself. It's a little more standout.

Ms. Drake: Don't you like running back and going through the minutes? Good point.  

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? From the public?

Mr. Horan: Just one comment regarding the timing issue…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me. Could you just identify yourself?

Mr. Horan: James Horan.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. Horan: Just one question regarding the timing issue until the map is filed with the County Clerk the new lot is not created so I would…a...a thought would be that any time frames should run from when the map is filed with the County Clerk…

Mr. Donovan: That's what we're doing.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Horan: …prior to that there is no… 

Mr. Donovan: Right.

Mr. Horan: …variance required.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.  

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Weeden: Thank you.

Mr. Dziewiatowski: Thank you very much.
(Time Noted – 9:01 PM)
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(1-1-118) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the front yard and side yard setbacks to temporarily keep accessory structures on Lot #2 of a three-lot subdivision.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Ted Dziewiatowski, 296 Forest Road, area variances for the front yard and side yard setbacks to temporarily keep accessory structures on Lot #2 of a three-lot subdivision. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. 

Ms. Drake: I think we discussed this one quite a bit and that the condition would be that he would have six months from when the map is filed with an additional extension to remove the structures on lot 2.

Mr. Hughes: Or to relocate.

Ms. Drake: Or to relocate, right. So I make a motion to approve the application with those conditions.

Mr. Hughes: I'll second that if counsel will construct a little advisory to go with it that according to what we reviewed if it came to where he didn't dispose of the lot in that period of time that he could move the other stuff over to the parent parcel? Just so everybody knows and he doesn't have to end up back here again for that.

Mr. Donovan: Yes. So noted. Yes, absolutely.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. I need to get this in, the County Recommendation on Dziewiatowski was a Local Determination.
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(6-1-10) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for a front yard for the existing villa (Lot #5) and a front yard setback and the minimum habitable floor area of the existing cottage (Lot #4) to remain for a five (5) lot subdivision.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Jan Kadnar.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, March 17th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on March February 18th. The applicant sent out fifteen registered letters, nine were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Inaudible.

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, could you use the mic? And could you identify yourself for the record? 

Mr. Raab: I'm sorry. My name is Jim Raab. I am with Vincent J. Doce Associates and I'm here to represent Jan Kadnar in this application before the Zoning Board of Appeals. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. Raab: As I was saying, I would like to apologize to the Board in the haste that the application was made, we wanted to get on this agenda, so I kind of hastily put one together. I have an addendum that I'd like to hand out to the Board if it's O.K. with the Chair?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Raab approached.

Mr. Raab: Basically this is a five-lot sub-division on Pressler Road and it's owned by the Kadners. It's approximately a fifty acre piece of property of what Lots #1, 2 and 3 will be new residential lots. O.K.? Lots # 4 and 5 have existing structures that would be on. Lot #4 has a cottage, approximately 624 sq. ft. O.K.? With a front yard setback of 21.7.

Mr. Hughes: Is that the corner one or the…?

Mr. Raab: That's the one right here. 624 sq.ft. with a 21.7 front yard setback. Of course, in this zone it requires 900 sq.ft. habitable area and a 50 ft. setback. Almost the entire structure is in the front in the required front yard. In the case of the Lot #5 which is the residual acreage the old villa building which the Kadners would like to renovate has a front yard setback of 10 ft. The thing here is that if any part of this building is going to get tore down it's probably the rear section. And I know you've all been there and you know that it’s a stone foundation structure. I'll hold it but I don't do that well so I'll just get closer to the map. The front portion in here is really the part that they want to save and of course, it’s the one that has the encroachment on the front yard. So that is exactly what they're trying to do so let me read through what I have here and hopefully I'll do it as fast as I possibly can. The new owners, the invested in renovating the cottage, they put a new roof on it as there was a new roof put on the villa structure but prior to them purchasing it. What they would like to do in, again they're existing structures, they are where they are, when they get started with the construction of these this old lovely chain link fence will be coming down and they're not…they are receptive to whatever the Board would require in a way of buffering because they are so close to the road for the two structures. We don't believe that once this lot is sold and there could be a condition written into the variance…we don't believe that anybody is going to continue to use this structure and try to add on to it. Only because it’s a…it's a crawlspace, it's not very well done, although the rest of the structure is in pretty good shape. But again we believe that anybody who buys this will want to bring the structure back further on the property and give themselves some front yard and some space from the road. But again that lot is probably the last one that is going to be sold by the Kadners. They want to get rid of these three first, use some of that money to get this…this is Jan Kadner Sr. this is his personal project to try to renovate this building right here. His son on the other hand wants him to knock down most of it so…but that would most likely be the back section here where they used to have the dancehall. As far as being substantial, yes, the setbacks we're asking for are substantial but they're existing and the hardship is created by the sub-division but again the structures are existing and they only wish to keep this structure because it's just been newly renovated and they have someone living in it who…as from what Mr. Kadner tells me and what the tenant tells me is that he does watch the property. Caretaker, that might be pushing the envelope a little bit but the tenant in the cottage does watch over the property. And that's pretty much it. 

Mr. Hughes: What serves these two properties down here for septic at present?

Mr. Raab: There's a…right now there's probably there's a…we've done some excavating in here, there's a round tank, a metal tank. O.K.? With maybe one lateral. We're going to be replacing that with approximately 120 feet of Elgins. O.K.? And a new concrete tank.

Mr. Hughes: What about the next?

Mr. Raab: The same thing.

Mr. Hughes: And doesn't that back drop off really rapidly?

Mr. Raab: Only over here…only here what we're going to do is we're going to put a pump in, tanks got to be in the front because that's where all the toilets go to its an old tank in the front. We're going to pump it back up into here so that its 200 feet away from the well that we're proposing. The well, well over two hundred feet away from the wells that across the street.

Mr. Hughes: Isn't the back of this a real severe drop behind…?

Mr. Raab: Way, way back here. 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Raab: Way back here.

Mr. Hughes: And you don't have any problems with wetlands as far as the distance here?  

Mr. Raab: No, no. The wetlands…the wetlands aren't even…the wetlands aren't even on the page. 

Mr. Hughes: These right now…are these all wells or is there? 

Mr. Raab: They're all wells.

Mr. Hughes: They're all wells?

Mr. Raab: Yeah. There all wells. All the expansion area is going to be 100% because we are going to be using Elgins entirely through the whole…through the whole sub-division.

Mr. Hughes: Twenty-four hour, Class Ones? 

Inaudible.

Mr. Hughes: Now what are those things up there over the double stonewall? Are they other residences?

Mr. Raab: They are…well they are proposed septic systems.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Do you have well markings on those?

Mr. Raab: Well the wells are on the other…we have the wells shown here. O.K.? The other that well is shown right here. 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Raab: O.K.? And there's the septic system that was just installed on this house right here. O.K.?

Mr. Hughes: Are the wells and septics at least a hundred feet apart on all of those parcels?

Mr. Raab: Absolutely, as required by law. And I want to thank Grace for closing the agenda when she did. Because if I had gotten that other one I'd probably be here until 11 o'clock. So thank you very much.

Chairperson Cardone: I was actually thinking of the Board.

Ms. Drake: Where else is the existing structure…where is the residence for lot…the remaining lot, the big remaining lot?

Mr. Raab: That would be here. 

Ms. Drake: That's the…

Mr. Raab: That's the one we're asking the variance for. 

Ms. Drake: Right, but where is the primary residence?

Mr. Raab: Right here in this part.

Ms. Drake: Oh, so they do live there in the villa?

Mr. Raab: No they don' t live there. They don't…neither Kadner lives there right now.

Ms. Drake: But then… 

Mr. Raab: This has to be completely renovated before anybody can live there.

Mr. Hughes: So what's going to be…?

Ms. Drake: Well then I'm going with the same application I went before so is there a primary residence for what you're creating a new lot? You're creating this lot…

Mr. Raab: That's going to be the primary residence for this lot. Yes.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. Raab: It's just not going to be the primary residence for the owner.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Ms. Eaton: Jim, will that be a single-family residence?

Mr. Raab: Yes absolutely.

Mr. Hughes: And what's the parent parcel left over when this is…? Fifty?

Mr. Raab: Forty-five, forty-six acres.

Ms. Drake: 46.78.

Mr. Hughes: Buildable?

Mr. Raab: Again this is going to…we were leaving space here for future development if the older Kadner gets his way its going stay just the way it is. The younger Kadner gets way then there's probably going to be a couple of more lots somewhere down the road but as far as what would have to be done here is a fairly engineered road to get back here. O.K.?

Mr. Hughes: Is that another road between the villa and Lot #4 down here? 

Mr. Raab: No, that's just a setback lines from the lot lines. Those are the side yard setback lines. 

Mr. Hughes: So then that would be the only road?

Mr. Raab: Actually its going to be a common driveway right now that's going to be shared by Lot 5 and Lot 3 that's all that's here right now. It's going to be…its 50 ft…

Mr. Hughes: So what does Lot 3 get a road behind Lot 2?

Mr. Raab: Yeah, right here and a driveway coming in like that. 

Mr. Hughes: I have nothing else. Thank you for answering those questions.

Mr. Raab: You're welcome.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions? Nothing from the public?

Mr. Toole: My name is Steve Toole, 254 Pressler Road. 

Ms. Drake: Can you use the microphone closer?

Chairperson Cardone: You can take the microphone right off.

Mr. Toole: The only question I have is what impact this might have surface water runoff? These lots are a little bit higher than my lot and there's no drainage on this side of the road and I'm concerned about water running, accumulating, running across the road into my lot. I know that since this house was built the gentleman who owns the lot in the back has experienced a greater amount of surface water congregating on his lot than existed before the building of this home over here. I don't know if that fits into your agenda?

Chairperson Cardone: It does. 

Mr. Toole: But that is the question, that's the concern that I have because a few years ago when we had a great deal of rain the water table ended up elevated so much that my basement was flooded. Fortunately it just came up through and went out again, we suffered a little damage but I'm concerned about any accommodations be made for surface water.

Chairperson Cardone: Do you have an answer, Jim?

Mr. Raab: What we can do that we haven't thought…we haven't really discussed it yet with the Planning Board because we ended up coming here but I would…I would say that if it was in your purview to approve this variance to make sure you put a caveat about that the drainage is looked into. But I'm going to make a note of it right now because I know what he is talking about and it’s a very good point especially with the houses being as close as they are. This ridge breaks back this way. O.K.? So what we're talking about is an increase in runoff caused by the roofs and their driveways so whatever we can do to help prevent any runoff on Mr. Toole's property we'd be glad to do.

Chairperson Cardone: Will there be a Public Hearing?

Mr. Raab: Yes, absolutely.

Chairperson Cardone: Absolutely? 

Mr. Donovan: Do you get that Steve? We're talking about the variances for to let the existing structures stay where they are. When this goes to the Planning Board and while we can address some of this tonight typically the Planning Board is concerned with those types of issues and there would be another Public Hearing there.

Mr. Toole: O.K. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes. 

Mr. Paolini: Anthony Paolini, 264 Pressler, same concerns about water runoff. There's no drainage on that road as it is right now its level and flat to that piece of property so everything that comes down the grade does drain onto our properties which are directly across from those there. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Paolini: So that would be my concern as well.

Mr. Raab: And also mine because one of the things our concerns were when we were doing the research here is how the previous sub-divisions got the wells so close to the villa. The villa's septic system is right here. It always was. As is the cottage's septic system right here. The cottage is no problem but the villa being right here and these two wells, Mr. Paolini's well and the well for his next door neighbor were right on top of us so that's one of the reasons why we took and put the…there is an existing septic system up here that was for the outbuildings in the back. So we knew that it perked. So we're putting the new septic system for the villa two hundred and some odd feet away from the wells that are on the other side of the road. But when I was looking at it I had gone to see the engineers that had done the other two sub-divisions and I wanted to know how they got the wells so close. And they said, well we're on the other side of the road and the drainage kind of cuts it off. Well it's absolutely not the case. There's no…there's no swale on our side of the road at all so what I believe is going to be one of the conditions of approval from the Planning Board is that we provide a swale on the side of the road to get it to the next covert. Wherever the next crossing covert is so that Mr. Paolini and Mr. Toole aren't affected. 

Mr. Hughes: The storm water management consultant at the Planning Board will address those things for you.

Mr. Raab: Mr. Patrick Hines.  

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions? Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Thank you. Before proceeding the Board will take a short adjournment to confer with counsel regarding legal questions raised by tonight's applications. And I would ask you to please wait out in the hallway and we will call you back in very shortly.

(Time Noted – 9:15 PM)

ZBA MEETING – March 26, 2009      (Resumption for decision: 9:35 PM)

JAN KADNAR 



275 PRESSLER ROAD, WALLKILL







(6-1-10) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for a front yard for the existing villa (Lot #5) and a front yard setback and the minimum habitable floor area of the existing cottage (Lot #4) to remain for a five (5) lot subdivision.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Jan Kadnar, 275 Pressler Road seeking area variances for a front yard for the existing villa (Lot #5) and a front yard setback and the minimum habitable floor area of the existing cottage (Lot #4) to remain for a five (5) lot subdivision. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Ms. Drake: I have one question, the area variance is for the front yard setback to the villa and wouldn't it also be for the front yard setback of the cottage on lot 4?

Mr. McKelvey: It is.

Mr. Maher: Yes, it is.

Ms. Drake: O.K. I didn't read it that way. O.K. I just wanted to be sure that was clear. I don’t have any other questions or discussion. I make a motion to approve the application.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Mr. Hughes: Do we need to condition this with the fact that if there were some new work to be done on the septics that they would be rolled to the back? Do we have a provision made in there for your wells and stuff?

Mr. Raab: They are going to be there anyway, so.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. So then a condition isn't necessary?

Mr. Donovan: I just don't know if you want to have a condition. I mean, again it’s a Planning Board issue with a condition relative to groundwater runoff. 

Mr. Raab: That's the one.

Mr. Hughes: That's the big deal, yeah.

Mr. Maher: And do we also have a condition relating to the fact the cottage to come down if construction is done on that lot there? On lot #4?

Mr. Raab: What's that?

Mr. Maher: If Lot 4 was going to be a house built on that particular parcel that you would take the cottage? O.K. 

Mr. Raab: That would be taken down. That's a very good condition. Thank you.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. Thanks.

Mr. McKelvey: Did we get a second?

Ms. Gennarelli: We had a first and a second. Brenda was the first. Ruth was the second.

O.K. Are we ready for a roll call?

Mr. Hughes: Yes we are.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Mr. Raab: Just one thing, like Jerry said about one of the other applications is that to make sure that it becomes a part of the map so that they go looking for it in the minutes. 

(Inaudible)
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Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other business for this evening?

Mr. McKelvey: Minutes?

Mr. Hughes: Did everyone get a look at these (Orange County Municipal Planning Federation - 2009 Planning & Land Use Course) for those who came in late? See if Dave has a copy of those.

Ms. Gennarelli: I gave him a copy.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Ms. Gennarelli: I am very thorough.

Mr. Hughes: I know that. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other…did people get a chance to read all the minutes? Yes. 

Ms. Drake: Why are you looking at me?

Chairperson Cardone: I'm hoping somebody else didn't have time.

Mr. Maher: The minutes? No I did not.

Chairperson Cardone: Oh good, I wasn't the only one who had a busy week.

Mr. McKelvey: We'll hold them over to next month. 

Mr. Hughes: I'd like to hold off on that so you all can read Mr. Shapiro's.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. That one I did read. 

Mr. Hughes: That was a long one.

Mr. Hughes: Shall we move to adjourn?

Chairperson Cardone: Anything else? O.K. Do I have a motion to adjourn?

Mr. Hughes: Now we had one guy that we were writing a letter to?

Chairperson Cardone: A motion to adjourn?

Mr. Hughes: No, we had that was out...that the guy didn't show and is it done? Danny Hayden.

Mr. Maher: Oh that was from Mountanview.

Ms. Gennarelli: We wrote him a letter that was withdrawn.

Mr. McKelvey: That was the last meeting.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, but you didn't hear anything back from?

Mr. Donovan: No.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Other than that I move to adjourn.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor say Aye?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone:  The motion is carried.
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